
 
 

 
 

 
Please silence your cell phones 
 
 

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 - 9:30 a.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road, 
Laguna Woods, California 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

 

 
1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum – Sue Margolis, President 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Torng 
 

3. Acknowledge Media 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

a. September 10, 2019 – Regular Open Session 

b. September 27, 2019 – Special Open (Tabulation Meeting) 

c. October 14, 2019 – Special Open (Update Committee Appointments) 

 

6.     Report of Chair 
   
7. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members may address 

the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction 
of this Board of Directors. There is a maximum time limit of three minutes per 
speaker and a speaker may only address the Board once during this period.  The 
Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the Open 
Forum. 

 

8. Responses to Open Forum Speakers 
 a. Follow-up Report from September 10, 2019, Open Forum – Director Margolis 
 
9. a.   Update from VMS – Director Pacella 
 



 
 
United Laguna Woods Mutual      
Board of Directors Regular Open Meeting  
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

 
 

b.  Candidate Nomination Period has been Extended for the United Mutual 
VMS Board Director Position (Term Ending 2022) Candidate Nominations 
close on Friday, November 22, 2019 at 5:00 p.m.  Please contact the 
Corporate Secretary for an application. 

 
10. CEO Report 
  
11. Consent Calendar – All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 

recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one 
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by 
members of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and 
action by the Board. 

 

a. Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Recommendations: 

 (1)  Recommendation to Approve (769-B,  La Corona, 3B) – Extend Dining 
Room into Front Patio 

 

b. Maintenance & Construction Committee Recommendations: 

 (1) Recommendation to Deny an Appeal from 2096-N for Reasonable 
Compensation 

 

c. Landscape Committee Recommendations: 

 (1)   Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Deny a Request for Tree 
Removal: 75-T Calle Aragon – Southern Magnolia 

(2)   Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Deny a Request for Tree 
Removal:  313-A Avenida Castilla – Canary Island Pine 

(3)   Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Deny a Request for Tree 
Removal:  873-D Avenida Sevilla – Star Pine 

(4)   Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Deny a Request for Tree 
Removal:  2188-Q Via Mariposa E. – Silk Oak 

(5)   Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Approve a Request for Tree 
Removal:  471-F Calle Cadiz – Carrotwood 

 

d. Finance Committee Recommendations: 

 (1)  Consistent with its statutory obligations under Civil Code §5501, a 
subcommittee of the Board consisting of the Treasurer and at least one 
other Board member reviewed the United Laguna Woods Mutual
financials for the month of September 2019, and such review is hereby 
ratified. 

e. Ratify the Revised United Mutual and GRF Committee Appointments
Approved on October 14, 2019  
 

12. Unfinished Business 
 



 
 
United Laguna Woods Mutual      
Board of Directors Regular Open Meeting  
November 12, 2019 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

 
 

a. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution to Require a Recognition Agreement 
for Lenders (SEPTEMBER initial notification-must postpone 28-days for 
Member comment and review to comply with Civil Code §4360) 
 

13.   New Business 
 

a. Entertain a Motion to Introduce for Revised Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water 
Units (NOVEMBER initial notification-must postpone 28-days for Member 
comment and review to comply with Civil Code §4360) 
 

b. Entertain a Motion to Introduce for Revised Alteration Standard 30: Water 
Heater Relocation (NOVEMBER initial notification-must postpone 28-days for 
Member comment and review to comply with Civil Code §4360) 
 

c. Entertain a Motion to Introduce for Revised Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
(NOVEMBER initial notification-must postpone 28-days for Member comment 
and review to comply with Civil Code §4360) 
 

d. Entertain a Motion to Approve the Charter of the VMS Liaison Committee 
 

e. Entertain a Motion to Revise the United Maintenance & Construction 
Committee Charter 
 

f. Entertain a Motion to Revise the Governing Documents Review Committee 
Charter 
 

g. Entertain a Motion to Approve United Investment Policy Revisions and Direct 
Sageview to Transition to Index Fund Portfolio 

 

14. Committee Reports 
 

a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Addington. 
The Committee met in September 24, 2019; next meeting November 26, 
2019, 1:30 p.m. in the Sycamore Room 

 Treasurer’s Report 
 United Finance Committee Report 
 Resales/Leasing Reports 

 

b. Report of the Architectural Control and Standards Committee – Director 
Gilmore. The Committee met on October 17, 2019; next meeting November 
21, 2019, 9:30 a.m. in the Elm Room 
 
 

c. Report of the Communications Committee – Director Skillman.  Next meeting 
TBA   
 

d. Report of Member Hearings Committee – Director Liberatore.  The 
Committee met on October 24, 2019; next meeting December 26, 2019, 9:00 
a.m. in the Sycamore Room   



 
 
United Laguna Woods Mutual      
Board of Directors Regular Open Meeting  
November 12, 2019 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

 
 

e. Report of the Governing Documents Review Committee – Director Torng. The 
Committee met on October 28, 2019; next meeting November 25, 2019, 1:30 
p.m. in the Sycamore Room 
 

f. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Armendariz. The Committee 
met on October 10, 2019; next meeting December 12, 2019, 9:30 a.m. in the 
Board Room  
 

g. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Randazzo. 
The Committee met on October 23, 2019; next meeting TBA. 
 

 Handyman Committee – Director Achrekar 
 

h. Report of the Resident Advisory Committee – Director Ardani. The Committee 
met on September 12, 2019; next meeting November 14, 2019, 4:00 p.m. in 
the Sycamore Room  
 

15. GRF Committee Highlights 
 

a.  Report of the Finance Committee – Director Addington.  The Committee met 
in October 23, 2019; next meeting December 18, 2019, 1:30 p.m. in the 
Board Room  
 

b. Report of the Community Activities Committee – Director Skillman.  The 
Committee met on September 12, 2019; next meeting November 14, 2019, 
1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

c. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Armendariz.  The Committee 
met on August 14, 2019; next meeting November 13, 2019, 1:30 p.m. in the 
Board Room 
 

d. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Randazzo. 
The Committee met on October 9, 2019; next meeting December 11, 2019, 
9:30 a.m. in the Board Room 
 

 PAC Renovation Ad-Hoc Committee—Director Randazzo. The 
Committee met on October 17, 2019, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

e. Village Energy Task Force – Director Randazzo.  The Task Force met on 
September 4, 2019.   
 

f. Report of the Media and Communication Committee – Director Skillman.  The 
Committee met on October 21, 2019; next meeting November 18, 2019, 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room   
 
 



 
 
United Laguna Woods Mutual      
Board of Directors Regular Open Meeting  
November 12, 2019 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 
Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

 
 

g. Report of the Mobility and Vehicles Committee – Director Addington.  The 
Committee met on October 2, 2019 and October 29, 2019; next meeting 
December 4, 2019, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 

h. Report of the Security and Community Access Committee – Director Ardani. 
The Committee met on October 28 2019; next meeting December 23, 2019, 
at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

i. Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Addington.  The Hearings 
were held on October 16, 2019; next hearings November 20, 2019, 9:00 a.m. 
in the Board Room and 1:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room  
 

j. Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director Skillman.  The 
Task Force met on September 24, 2019; next meeting November 26, 2019, 
9:30 a.m. in the Board Room  
 

16. Future Agenda Items – All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are 
Resolutions on 28-day public review or items for a future Board Meetings.  No 
action will be taken by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting.  The Board 
will take action on these items at a future Board Meeting.     

 

a. Committee Advisor Qualifications, Procedure and Policy 
 

b. Update the Co-Occupancy Qualifications 
 

c. Alternative Heat Source Policy 
 

 
17. Directors' Comments 
 
18. Recess - At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 

Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.   
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 
 (a)  September 10, 2019—Regular Closed Meeting 
 (b)  October 2, 2019—Special Closed Meeting 
 (c)  October 14, 2019 – Special Closed Meeting 

 (d) October 21, 2019 – Special Closed Meeting  
Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 
 
19. Adjourn 



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 15

 



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 15



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 1 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 2 of 9



 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE UNITED BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

UNITED MUTUAL LAGUNA WOODS 
September 27, 2019 

Certification Report of Inspectors of Election 

VOTE:  2019 Board Elections (Term Ending 2022) 

  United Percent 
Neda Ardani              701  13.49% 
Alan Dickinson              174  3.35% 
Janey Dorrell              462  8.89% 
Brian Gilmore           1,075  20.69% 
Cynthia Rupert              461  8.87% 
Gregory McLaughlin              112  2.16% 
Robert Gary Morrison 610 11.74% 
Andre Torng 1013 19.50% 
Maggie Blackwell 587 11.30% 
Invalid Ballots              506  8.14% 
Voter Members           6,218    
Voter Quorum Needed              933  15.00% 
Overall Voter Turnout           1,840  29.59% 

Total Households 6,323   
      

      

 
   

Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 3 of 9



 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE UNITED BOARD 
UNITED MUTUAL LAGUNA WOODS 

September 27, 2019 

Quorum 

  
# 

Directors Directors Present 
United Laguna Woods 
Mutual 

         
11                  11  

TOTAL 
         

11  11 

* Rounded down Quorum Requirement: 6 
Majority Vote 

Requirement: 8 

 

Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 4 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 5 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 6 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 7 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 8 of 9



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 9 of 9



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 2 of 2



November 12, 2019 

VMS Report to United Mutual 
Dorothy Pacella, VMS Director 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 1 of 10



2 

Key Performance Indicators 
• Often referred to as KPIs 
• A quantifiable measure used to evaluate the 

success of an organization, employee, etc., 
in meeting performance objectives. 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 2 of 10



3 

Strategic Plan 
Representatives from the boards of GRF, VMS, 
Third Mutual and United Mutual, along with staff, 
have been engaged in strategic planning since 
February 2019.  
• First met in May 
• Next meeting is later this month 

 
 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 3 of 10



4 

Strategic Plan + KPIs = Success 
Each entity must determine its KPIs as they relate to the plan. 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 4 of 10



5 

VMS KPI - 1 
Goal: Ensure financial stability and longevity 
 
Key Performance Questions: 
• Are we doing more with less? 
• Do we have operational excellence and sustainability? 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 5 of 10



6 

VMS KPI - 2 
Goal: Improve customer service to meet residents’ needs 
and concerns  
 
Key Performance Questions: 
• Are services performed on time and completed correctly?  
• Is communication effective and with no surprises? 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 6 of 10



7 

VMS KPI - 3 
Goal: Attract, develop and retain high-quality staff  
 
Key Performance Questions: 
• Do we have an engaged workforce? 
• Are rewards and recognition competitive? 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 7 of 10



8 

VMS KPI - 4 
Goal: Implement technology advances  
 
Key Performance Questions: 
• Are we maximizing our resources to encourage 

innovation and embrace change? 
• Are we adapting best practices for our industry? 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 8 of 10



9 

VMS KPI - 5 
Goal: Upgrade our infrastructure  
 
Key Performance Questions: 
• Do we have in-depth five-year and 30-year studies of 

major repair and replacement requirements? 
• Do we have adequate reserve funds? 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 9 of 10



10 

5 Critical KPIs 
The VMS Board of Directors will be focusing on and 
reporting on these five critical KPIs as we move ahead 
into the future. 
 
Thank you very much. 
 

Agenda Item # 9a 
Page 10 of 10



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Mr. Tae Young of 769-B Calle Aragon, a La Corona style unit, requests 
Board approval of a request to extend the dining room by 13’-3” into the existing 
front patio;  

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected 
units on September 26, 2019, notifying them that an application to make an 
alteration to a neighboring Unit had been made and that comments or objections 
could be made in writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or 
in person at the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on 
October 17, 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on November 12, 2019, the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the request to extend the dining room by 13’-3” into the 
existing front patio 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement 
or removal of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the 
Shareholder at 769-B and all future Shareholders at 769-B. 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

Agenda Item # 11a1 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Denial of Removal of One Southern Magnolia Tree  
75-T Calle Aragon 

WHEREAS, February 12, 2013, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 01-
13-17 tree removal guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope. 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in failing 
health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for removal. 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request to 
remove one Southern Magnolia tree. The request was received from the Member at 
75-T Calle Aragon, who cited the reasons as litter/debris and view obstruction and; 

WHEREAS, the Committee recommended to deny the removal of one Southern 
Magnolia tree located at 75-T due to the United Mutual policy to not remove trees 
due to litter or debris and that there is no current policy for the trimming of trees due 
to view obstruction.                  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, the Board of Directors 
denies the request for the removal of one Southern Magnolia tree at 75-T, and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 11c1 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Denial of Removal of One Canary Island Pine 
313-A Avenida Castilla 

WHEREAS, February 12, 2013, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 01-
13-17 tree removal guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope. 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in failing 
health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for removal. 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request to 
remove one Canary Island Pine tree. The request was received from the Member at 
313-A Avenida Castilla, who cited the reason as litter/debris, structural damage, and 
overgrown, and; 

WHEREAS, the Committee recommended to deny the removal of one Canary Island 
Pine tree located at 313-A due to no visible damage to the patio wall or sidewalk, 
and no reports of sewer line stoppages, unit damage, or sidewalk repairs.  The 
United Mutual policy is to not remove trees due to litter or debris.                  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, the Board of Directors 
denies the request for the removal of one Canary Island Pine tree at 313-A, and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 11c2 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Denial of Removal of One Star Pine 
873-D Avenida Sevilla 

WHEREAS, February 12, 2013, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 01-
13-17 tree removal guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope. 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in failing 
health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for removal. 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request to 
remove one Star Pine tree. The request was received from the Member at 873-D 
Avenida Sevilla, who cited the reason as litter/debris, poor condition, personal 
preference, and view obstruction, and; 

WHEREAS, the Committee recommended to deny the removal of one Star Pine tree 
located at 873-D due to the United Mutual policy which is to not remove trees due to 
litter or debris and the fact that there is no policy for the trimming of trees due to view 
obstruction.                  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, the Board of Directors 
denies the request for the removal of one Star Pine tree at 873-D, and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 11c3 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Denial of Removal of One Silk Oak 
2188-Q Via Mariposa E. 

WHEREAS, February 12, 2013, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 01-
13-17 tree removal guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope. 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in failing 
health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for removal. 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request to 
remove one Silk Oak tree. The request was received from the Member at 2188-Q 
Via Mariposa E., who cited the reason as possible structural damage, litter/debris, 
and the potential of considerable damage to both buildings 2188 and 2187 should 
there be a serious weather event, and; 

WHEREAS, the Committee recommended to deny the removal of one Silk Oak tree 
located at 2188-Q due to the United Mutual policy which is to not remove trees due 
to litter or debris and Staff found no visible damage to the unit due to the tree. The 
tree department has been instructed to crown reduce trees during the upcoming 
normal trim cycles.  This tree will be thinned and have end weight reduced.               

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, the Board of Directors 
denies the request for the removal of one Silk Oak tree at 2188-Q, and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 11c4 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 
 

Approval of Removal  
of One Carrotwood Tree at 471-F Calle Cadiz 

 
WHEREAS, February 12, 2013, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 01-
13-17 tree removal guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope. 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in failing 
health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for removal. 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request to 
remove one Carrotwood Tree. The request was received from the Member at 471-F, 
who cited the reasons as structural damage, litter/debris, and the lifting of the 
pavement causing risk and hazard, and;  

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2019, the Landscape Committee recommended to 
approve the removal of one Carrotwood tree located at 471-F Calle Cadiz based on 
the removal would be a cost saving to the Mutual as its rapid growth is causing 
sidewalk cracking as well as cracking in the patio area. Also, there is a Brazilian 
Pepper tree in good health located at Unit G and with the removal of the 
Carrotwood, the Pepper tree would eventually assume a better shape due to the 
competition for available space with these two trees being planted so closely 
together. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, the Board of Directors 
approves the request for the removal of one Carrotwood tree;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

Agenda Item # 11c5 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



 
   

 
 

 
 
                             

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONFIRMATION CHECKLIST FOR 
 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 
A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

 
 Pursuant to California Civil Code Section 5500, unless the governing documents 
impose more stringent requirements, the Board of Directors of United Laguna Woods 
Mutual (“United”) is required to review various financial documents and statements on at 
least a monthly basis. Furthermore, this review requirement may be satisfied by a 
subcommittee of the Board, which consists of United’s treasurer and at least one (1) 
other Board member. (Civil Code § 5501.) 
 
 This Financial Review Confirmation Checklist (“Checklist”) is designed for use in 
keeping track of the financial review obligations required by the Civil Code. It also 
serves to document the completion/satisfaction of these financial review obligations by 
the Board of Directors and/or the designated subcommittee of the Board. 
 
 Accordingly, the undersigned Board members, or designated subcommittee 
members, hereby affirm that they reviewed the following documents for the period 
ending September 30, 2019: 
 

_____1. A current reconciliation of United’s operating and reserve 
accounts; and 

 
_____2. The current year’s actual operating revenues and expenses,  

    compared to the current year’s budget; and 
 

_____3. The latest account statements prepared by the financial  
institutions where United has its operating and reserve accounts; 
and 

 
_____4. The income and expense statement for United’s operating and  

    reserve accounts; and 
 

_____5. The check register, monthly general ledger, and delinquent  
    assessment receivable reports. 

 
  
  

Agenda Item # 11d1 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 11d1 
Page 2 of 2



 
 

RESOLUTION 01-18-43 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 01-19-75 
United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee Appointments 

 
RESOLVED, October 14, 2019, that the following persons are hereby 
appointed to serve the Corporation in the following capacities: 

 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
Brian Gilmore, Chair 
Reza Bastani 
Carl Randazzo 
Elsie Addington 
Non-Voting Advisors: Michael Mehrain, Janey Dorrell, Walt Ridley  
 

Communications Committee 
Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Elsie Addington 
Non-Voting Advisors: Maggie Blackwell 
 

Finance Committee  
Elsie Addington, Chair 
Sue Margolis 
Carl Randazzo 
Anthony Liberatore 
Brian Gilmore 
Non-voting Advisors: Vacant (2) 
 

Financial Review Task Force 
Elsie Addington  
Brian Gilmore 

 

Governing Documents Review Committee 
Andre Torng, Chair 
Juanita Skillman 
Manuel Armendariz 
Sue Margolis 
Neda Ardani 
Reza Bastani 
Non-voting Advisors: Bevan Strom  

 

Landscape Committee 
Manuel Armendariz, Chair 
Anthony Liberatore 
Andre Torng 
Non-Voting Advisor: Catherine Brians, Vacant (2) 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 1 of 4



October 31, 2019 (REVISED) 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

Maintenance and Construction Committee 
Carl Randazzo, Chair 
Cash Achrekar 
Reza Bastani 
Elsie Addington 
Brian Gilmore 
Non-voting Advisor: Ken Deppe, Walter Ridley, Janey Dorrell 
 

Members Hearing Committee  
Anthony Liberatore, Chair 
Juanita Skillman 
Andre Torng 
Neda Ardani 
New Resident Orientation 
Per Rotation List 

 

Resident Advisory Committee 
Neda Ardani, Chair 
Cash Achrekar 
Juanita Skillman 
Non-voting Advisors: Kay Anderson, Nancy Lannon 
 
Handyman Task Force 
Cash Achrekar, Chair 
Juanita Skillman 
Elsie Addington 
Carl Randazzo 
Anthony Liberatore 
Non-voting Advisors:  Nancy Lannon, Janey Dorrell and Ester Wright 
 

RESOLVE FURTHER that all directors are considered alternate members of 
each committee “Alternate.”  Each Alternate may serve as a substitute for 
another director that is unable to attend a meeting (“Substitute”).  Committee 
Member Alternates cannot substitute for more than three (3) consecutive 
meetings.  This will allow any director to ask any other director to sit in their 
stead during a temporary absence or unavailability.  Of course, we can 
modify this and structure this any way the Board feels is best.  However, the 
concept is that the Board, in advance, will approve any director sitting on a 
committee on a temporary basis when necessary to fill in for another director. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER Resolution 01-19-29, adopted March 12, 2019, is 
hereby superseded and canceled. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this resolution.  

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 2 of 4



October 31, 2019 (REVISED) 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 01-18-xx 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 01-19-76 
Golden Rain Foundation Committee Appointments 

 
RESOLVED, October 14, 2019, that in compliance with Article 7, Section 7.3 
of the Golden Rain Foundation Bylaws, adopted September 29, 2014, the 
following persons are hereby appointed to serve on the committees of the 
Golden Rain Foundation: 

 
GRF Business Planning 
Sue Margolis 
Manuel Armendariz 
Elsie Addington, Alternate 

 
GRF Community Activities 
Juanita Skillman 
Andre Torng 
Elsie Addington, Alternate 
 
GRF Finance  
Sue Margolis 
Elsie Addington 
Manuel Armendariz, Alternate 
 
GRF Landscape Committee 
Manuel Armendariz 
Andre Torng 
Neda Ardani, Alternate 

 
GRF Maintenance & Construction 
Carl Randazzo 
Reza Bastani 
Brian Gilmore, Alternate 
 

PAC Renovation Task Force 
Carl Randazzo 
Juanita Skillman 
Sue Margolis, Alternate 

 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 3 of 4



October 31, 2019 (REVISED) 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 
 
GRF Media and Communications Committee 
Juanita Skillman 
Elsie Addington 
Neda Ardani, Alternate 
 
GRF Mobility and Vehicles Committee 
Elsie Addington 
Reza Bastani 
Brian Gilmore, Alternate 
 
GRF Security and Community Access  
Neda Ardani 
Cash Achrekar 
Brian Gilmore, Alternate 
Manuel Armendariz 
 

Disaster Preparedness Task Force  
Cash Achrekar 
Neda Ardani 
Reza Bastani, Alternate 
Andre Torng 
 

Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings 
Elsie Addington 
Neda Ardani, Alternate 

 
Town Hall Meetings 
As Needed 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-19-30, adopted March 12, 2019, 
is hereby superseded and cancelled. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this resolution.  
 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 4 of 4



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: November 12, 2019 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Recognition Agreement 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Entertain a motion to approve the attached Resolution establishing objective standards for 
approval to loan within United Laguna Woods Mutual (United). 
 
BACKGROUND 
United is a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation, existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of California, organized for the purpose of providing its members with housing on a 
cooperative nonprofit basis pursuant to the provisions set forth in its occupancy agreement, 
articles of incorporation, bylaws and board resolutions (collectively referred to as the governing 
documents). The corporation’s amended and restated bylaws (bylaws) provide that the 
purpose of the corporation is to “manage, maintain, preserve, and administer the business of a 
common interest development, specifically, a stock cooperative” (bylaws Article II, Section 1). 
 
United as a stock cooperative housing development holds title to all property and structures in 
United wherein each shareholder-member has ownership of one share in the cooperative and 
is granted the right to occupy a specific unit pursuant to an occupancy agreement provided 
each shareholder-member meets the age requirement and the financial qualifications set forth 
in the financial qualifications policy (rev. 5-23-18 9-10-19); 
 
Pursuant to bylaws Article II, Section 3, the board of directors of the corporation is authorized 
to establish policy and perform various administrative activities. Included among the board of 
directors’ management responsibilities is the vetting of lenders seeking to loan money to 
shareholder-members secured by property within United, in order to ensure the continued 
solvency of the corporation. 
 
The board of directors requires a lender to sign its recognition agreement, giving United first 
right of refusal and agreeing to pay assessments when due in the event the member defaults 
in its obligation to pay assessments. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Through counsel, the board of directors has enumerated objective criteria lenders must satisfy 
in order to loan to shareholder-members within United, including that the prospective lender is 
either a state or federally chartered bank or credit union. 
 
If prospective lender is either a state or federally chartered bank or credit union, the institution 
may be deemed an approved lender and upon execution of United’s recognition agreement, 
allowed to loan to shareholder-members within United. Otherwise the institution should be 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 18



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Recognition Agreement 
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 
 
advised that it fails to meet the objective criteria established to ensure the continued viability of 
the corporation, that they are not approved to loan money to United shareholder-members. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Siobhan Foster, COO 
    Pamela Bashline, Community Services Manager 
    
Reviewed By:  Jeffrey A. Beaumont, Esq., Corporate Counsel 
  
     
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: Recognition Agreement 
ATT 2: Resolution 01-19-XX 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 2 of 18



 

1  

When recorded return to: 
 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
c/o Village Management Services   
24351El Toro Road 
P. O. Box 2220 
Laguna Hills, California 92654 

 
 

RECOGNITION AGREEMENT 

This Recognition Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this      day of Month, 

_______, by and between UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL, a California nonprofit 

mutual benefit corporation (the "Mutual") and ___________________ ("Lender"). The 

Mutual and Lender may collectively be referred to herein as the "Parties" and, 

sometimes, singularly as a "Party." 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. The Mutual is the owner of certain dwelling units located at Laguna 

Woods, California (the "Project"), more particularly described in Exhibit A to this 

document.   

B. Each member of the Mutual (the “Member”) owns a membership in the 

Mutual and the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods (collectively, the 

“Membership”) and the “right to occupy” a specified unit owned by the Mutual. The 

"right to occupy" a unit is subject to the terms of an Occupancy Agreement (the 

"Occupancy Agreement") entered into between the Mutual and the Member. 

C. Lender desires to continue to make secured loans to qualified Members.  

The loans are to be secured by a pledge to Lender of the Member's Membership, 

including the Member’s membership certificate in the Mutual and the Member’s 

membership in Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods, together with the 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 3 of 18



 

2  

Member’s rights and interest under the Occupancy Agreement (collectively, 

“Member’s Interest”). For the purposes of this document, either an assignment or an 

encumbrance of the Member’s Interest as security for repayment of a loan is a 

“Pledge.” 

D. A Member’s Interest may not be Pledged to Lender without the 

consent of the Mutual. 

E. In order to avoid the administrative expenses to the Mutual and the 

Lender arising from Lender’s submission to the Mutual of requests on an individual 

basis for approval of the Pledge to Lender of a Member’s Interest as security for a 

loan from Lender to the Member, the Mutual and Lender desire to set forth the 

terms and conditions under which the Mutual consents to all such pledges by 

Members to Lender. 

T E R M S 

1. Mutual Protection.  Lender, for itself and its successors and assigns, 

covenants and agrees that all of its rights and powers under any obligation entered 

into with any Member shall be in accordance with all terms and conditions of this 

Agreement (a "share loan") and shall be subordinate and subject to rights of the 

Mutual to collect monthly assessments, which are in turn utilized to fulfill the 

Mutual’s responsibilities to State, County or local authorities to pay any and all 

taxes and similar expenses assessed against the Project, for which the Mutual as 

owner of the underlying property is responsible. Moreover, in the event the Mutual 

acquires the Member’s Interest based on the foreclosure process pursuant to the 

Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act and in accordance with the 

Mutual’s governing documents (whether under judicial foreclosure or nonjudicial 

foreclosure), the Lender’s lien or any interest in the Project that the Lender had 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 4 of 18



 

3  

shall automatically terminate, subject to the conditions hereinafter described. The 

Lender may cure the Member’s default to the Mutual prior to any such foreclosure 

action. 

The Mutual shall give written notice to the Lender in the event that: (1) the 

Mutual proceeds to record a Notice of Delinquent Assessments; or (2) the Mutual 

decides to accept the Member’s Interest in lieu of foreclosure. The Mutual will give 

such written notice if the Lender provides a written request for such written notice 

and the opportunity to cure any Member’s default to the Mutual. The Lender shall 

have thirty (30) days to cure the default after the notice of the Member’s default to 

the Mutual or notice of the Mutual’s intent to accept the Member’s Interest in lieu of 

foreclosure is mailed. 

2. Conditions of Applicability.  Although this Agreement provides a 

general structure for the relationship between Lender and the Mutual, it shall apply 

only in cases where the affected Member specifically consents in writing to 

subordinate the Member's rights under his Occupancy Agreement and the Bylaws 

of the Mutual to those of the Lender set forth in this document. 

3. Consent to Pledge. Until termination of this Agreement as provided in 

Paragraph 19 below, the Mutual hereby irrevocably consents to the Pledge of the 

following to Lender by any Member as security for any loan from Lender to the 

Member: 

(a) The Member’s Membership; 

(b) The Member's Certificate; and, 

(c) All of the Member's rights and interest under the Occupancy  

 Agreement between the Member and the Mutual. 

Notwithstanding the Member's pledge to the Lender, the Member shall retain all rights, 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 5 of 18



 

4  

privileges, and obligations of membership (specifically including the right to occupy and 

use the dwelling unit and community facilities, the right to vote, and the obligation to 

comply with the Occupancy Agreement and Bylaws of the Mutual) until and unless the 

Occupancy Agreement and membership rights are terminated under the provisions of 

the Occupancy Agreement and the Mutual's Bylaws or the pledged collateral is 

foreclosed or accepted in lieu of foreclosure by the Lender under the terms of the 

lending relationship between the Lender and the Member. 

4. Notification of Pledges.  From time to time, Lender may furnish in writing 

to Mutual, a list of all Members who have made pledges to Lender of the items listed in 

Paragraph 3(a), 3(b) and 3(c) above. The most current such list is hereinafter called the 

“List.”  The List shall be delivered according to Paragraph 21 of this Agreement. 

5. Notices by Mutual to Lender. Within 30 days of receipt of a List, the 

Mutual agrees to furnish Lender written notification of the name of each Member on the 

List (a) who is in default (monetary or otherwise) for more than thirty (30) days under 

the terms of either the Occupancy Agreement between the Mutual and the Member or 

the Mutual’s Bylaws or (b) who actually or constructively gives the Mutual notice of an 

intention to leave the Project, as provided in Article Ill, Section 4 of the Mutual's Bylaws 

or in any other fashion that indicates an intent to surrender the Member’s right to 

occupy the dwelling unit, the Membership and the Certificate. 

6. Right to Cure in the Event of Default.  The Mutual agrees that it will not 

commence action to terminate the Occupancy Agreement or Membership of any 

Member on the List for a default under the terms of the Member’s Occupancy 

Agreement or the Mutual’s Bylaws without giving Lender prior written notice and the 

opportunity to cure said default or acquire such Member’s Membership, Certificate and 

Occupancy Agreement in accordance with the following: 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 6 of 18



 

5  

(a) Monetary Default. If the default arises from the Member's failure to 

make any payment due the Mutual (including late charges, interest and any other cost 

associated with the delinquency), and Lender or the Member cures said default within 

thirty (30) days after Lender's receipt of the Mutual’s notice furnished pursuant to 

Paragraph 5 above, the Mutual shall not commence action to terminate the Member’s 

Occupancy Agreement or membership. The Mutual’s acceptance of any amounts paid 

by Lender to cure a Member’s monetary default shall not constitute a waiver of the 

Mutual’s rights under the Mutual’s Bylaws concerning the occupancy and use of the 

Member's dwelling unit or the transfer of the Member's membership in the Mutual. 

(b) Nonmonetary Default.  If the default arises from the Member’s 

failure to comply with a term or condition of either the Occupancy Agreement or the 

Mutual’s Bylaws which does not require a payment of money to the Mutual and all 

amounts due under the terms of the Occupancy Agreement are kept current, the 

Mutual will not commence action to terminate the Member’s Occupancy Agreement or 

Membership provided either the Lender causes the Member to cure such default within 

thirty (30) days of Lender's receipt of Mutual’s notice furnished pursuant to Paragraph 5 

above or the Lender provides the Mutual with a photocopy of a document commencing 

foreclosure of the pledge within such thirty (30) day period and continues with 

reasonable diligence to foreclose Lender’s pledge by nonjudicial or judicial foreclosure. 

7. Mutual's Transfer of Memberships and Termination of Occupancy 

Agreements in the Event of Default or Surrender. The Mutual retains its right to 

terminate and transfer the membership and terminate the Member's rights under the 

Occupancy Agreement of any Member on the List in accordance with Section 5 of 

Article Ill of the Mutual's Bylaws if: 

(a) Lender consents to the transfer and termination by reconveyance 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 7 of 18



 

6  

of Lender's deed of trust or otherwise; or,  

(b) The Member's monetary default is not cured within the thirty (30) 

day period for which provision is made in Paragraph 6(a) above; or,  

(c) The Member's nonmonetary default is not cured within the thirty 

(30) day period for which provision is made in Paragraph 6(b) above or the Lender 

does not (1) provide the Mutual a photocopy of a document commencing foreclosure of 

the pledge within said thirty (30) day period and (2) diligently pursue the foreclosure of 

its pledge. 

In the event there is a nonmonetary default and, before it is cured, a monetary 

default occurs also, the Mutual may terminate the Member's Membership and transfer 

the Member's Membership and terminate the Member's rights under the Occupancy 

Agreement wherever it is entitled to do so under the provisions of any of subparagraphs 

(a), (b) or (c). 

If Lender pays the Mutual all amounts which become due the Mutual from the 

defaulting Member and Lender furnishes Mutual with evidence of Lender’s having 

acquired Member’s rights and interest under the Occupancy Agreement, the Certificate, 

and Member’s Membership prior to the Mutual’s termination of the Member’s 

Membership and the Member's rights under the Occupancy Agreement, the Mutual will 

issue a new Certificate and enter into a new Occupancy Agreement with a designee of 

Lender approved by the Mutual (as provided in Paragraph 8 below) as soon as 

reasonably possible after such termination or surrender. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Mutual’s Bylaws and any failure by Lender 

diligently to foreclose its pledge, the Mutual shall deliver to Lender (instead of the 

Member) any amount that may become due the Member under either Section 4 or 

Section 5 of the Article Ill of the bylaws of the Mutual, up to the amount due Lender 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 8 of 18



 

7  

under the provisions of its note and pledge, as provided in Paragraph 8 below.  

8. Lender's Right to Proceeds or to Designate Transferee If Mutual 

Redeems or Accepts Surrender of Membership. If the Mutual exercises its option to 

purchase the Membership of any Member on the List in accordance with Section 4 of 

Article Ill of Mutual’s bylaws upon a Member’s actual or constructive notice of an 

intention to leave the Project, Mutual shall pay Lender from the funds otherwise 

payable to the Member an amount not exceeding the Member's indebtedness to 

Lender. In the event the amount otherwise payable to the Member is less than the 

Member's indebtedness to Lender, then if Lender pays Mutual all amounts owed to the 

Mutual by the Member under the provisions of Section 4 of Article Ill and any other 

provision of the Mutual's bylaws or Occupancy Agreement within 30 days after the 

Mutual exercises its option to purchase the Membership or after the Mutual accepts a 

surrender of the Member's Membership, right to occupy, and Certificate, the Mutual will 

issue a new Certificate and enter into a new Occupancy Agreement with a designee of 

Lender approved by the Mutual (as provided in Paragraph 9 below) as soon as 

reasonably possible after all payments due are received by the Mutual. 

9. Foreclosure by Lender. 

(a)  If Lender forecloses its Pledge or accepts an assignment of the 

Occupancy Agreement encumbered by the deed of trust, the Membership, and the 

Certificate in lieu of foreclosure, Lender shall give the Mutual the first right of refusal to 

purchase the Membership Interest.  Thereafter, if the Mutual declines to purchase the 

Membership Interest within a reasonable time, Lender will then use its best efforts to 

sell the Membership Interest (or lease the dwelling unit as allowed by Paragraph 11 

below) as rapidly as reasonably possible.   

(b)  When Lender seeks the Mutual’s approval of a designee pursuant to 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 9 of 18



 

8  

Paragraph 7 or Paragraph 8 above, the Mutual will not unreasonably withhold its 

approval of such designee who meets the Mutual’s customary requirements. The 

Mutual shall review the qualifications of the designee in the same manner as it reviews 

the qualifications of a prospective purchaser of a Certificate from any Member, and the 

Mutual’s requirements or standards for membership shall not be applied capriciously or 

arbitrarily.  

(c)  During the period between Lender’s foreclosure or acceptance of an 

assignment in lieu of foreclosure and the sale of the Membership to a designee 

approved by the Mutual, Lender shall not be considered a member, per se, and shall 

have no right to occupy or use the dwelling unit or common facilities or to vote.  

Lender’s rights shall be limited to those specified in this Agreement. However, during 

this period Lender shall have the same duties and responsibilities under the Mutual’s 

bylaws and the former Member’s Occupancy Agreement as the former Member had - 

specifically including the former Member’s obligation to pay the monthly carrying 

charges promptly. Moreover, the Mutual shall have the same remedies against Lender 

in the event of default that it had against the former Member. 

(d)  The Parties hereto agree and covenant that if Lender forecloses its 

Pledge or accepts an assignment of the Pledge in lieu of foreclosure, that Lender’s 

interest in the Project is taken subject to any and all sums due and owing Mutual by the 

former member under the Occupancy Agreement or otherwise (“Defaulted Sums”).  

Lender agrees to pay all Defaulted Sums to Mutual upon sale or lease of the 

membership or dwelling unit, regardless of whether Mutual has obtained or perfected a 

lien against the membership and regardless whether the proceeds from any such sale 

or lease exceed or satisfy sums due and owing Lender by the former Member; the 

Parties agree that under any and all circumstances Lender shall pay Mutual the full 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 10 of 18



 

9  

amount of the Defaulted Sums upon sale or lease of the membership or dwelling unit. 

10. Indemnification of the Mutual.  Lender shall indemnify the Mutual against, 

and hold the Mutual free and harmless from, any loss, liability or expense (including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and the cost of litigation) incurred by the Mutual in 

connection with any claim by a Member or the Member’s successors in interest which 

arises out of Lender’s representations or actions pursuant to this Agreement.  

11. Lender's Right to Lease or Sublease.  Lender shall have the same right to 

lease or sublease the dwelling unit of a Member whose Membership, Certificate, and 

right to occupy are obtained by Lender through foreclosure or assigned to Lender in 

lieu of foreclosure to the same extent and on the same terms and conditions as the 

Member otherwise would have. 

12. Amendment to Occupancy Agreement and Bylaws. The Mutual agrees 

that it will not consent to or make any amendment that is materially detrimental to 

Lender's rights under this Agreement to any Occupancy Agreement between the 

Mutual and any Member on the List or to the Mutual's Bylaws without obtaining 

Lender's prior written consent, which consent shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

13. Estoppel Statement.  Within ten (10) days after receipt of a request for an 

estoppel statement, either Party shall deliver to the other a written statement of the 

magnitude and nature of any amounts which the Party alleges is due from a Member 

on the List. Such statement shall be binding upon the Party providing the statement as 

of the date of the statement. The party providing the statement shall have the right to 

require the Party requesting the statement to pay a reasonable fee for the provider's 

cost to prepare and reproduce such statement. 

14. Inspection Rights. Lender shall have the same rights of inspection of the 

books and records of the Mutual as are granted to a Member by the Bylaws of the 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 11 of 18



 

10  

Mutual and the California Corporations Code. 

15. Fire and Casualty Insurance. The Mutual warrants that it has and will 

maintain until the termination of this Agreement fire and casualty insurance with 

extended coverage of all buildings containing a dwelling unit which is the subject of an 

Occupancy Agreement with a Member on the List in an amount as near as reasonably 

possible to the full replacement value of such buildings (including, without limitation, all 

portions of such dwelling unit consisting of built-in or set-in appliances and cabinets, as 

initially installed or replacements thereof, or as installed by or at the expense of the 

Member), without deduction for depreciation. To the extent reasonably possible, each 

such policy of fire and casualty insurance shall provide for waiver of subrogation of 

claims against residents of Laguna Woods Village. 

16. Casualty Losses.  The Mutual hereby waives and releases all claims 

against Lender resulting from an insured or uninsured casualty to the extent of the 

insurance proceeds available plus any deductible under insurance coverage, whether or 

not the damage or injury is caused by the Member's negligence, fault or misuse. 

Notwithstanding any provision of the bylaws or of the Occupancy Agreement with a 

Member on the List, the Mutual shall repair or replace the dwelling unit subject lo the 

Occupancy Agreement with a Member on the List that is damaged or destroyed as a 

result of an insured casualty in a manner that restores the dwelling unit to substantially 

its condition and value prior to the damage or destruction if the cost of doing so does 

not exceed the insurance proceeds plus the deductible under the insurance coverage.  

If the cost of repairing or replacing such damaged dwelling unit in a manner that 

restores it to substantially its condition and value prior to the damage is greater than the 

insurance proceeds available to the Mutual for such purpose plus the deductible under 

the insurance coverage and the Mutual elects not to repair and replace it, then the 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 12 of 18



 

11  

Mutual shall pay Lender from funds otherwise payable to the Member an amount not 

exceeding the Member's indebtedness to Lender prior to paying any portion of such 

insurance proceeds to such Member or using any portion of such proceeds for any 

purpose other than to satisfy any amounts owed by such Member to the Mutual. 

17. Condemnation Awards.  If the Mutual receives an award for condemnation 

or taking of all or any portion of a dwelling unit which is subject to an Occupancy 

Agreement in favor of a Member on the List or any other award for condemnation or 

taking a portion of which is allocable to a Member on the List, the Mutual shall pay 

Lender from the funds otherwise payable to the Member an amount not exceeding the 

Member's indebtedness to Lender prior to paying any portion of the condemnation or 

taking award to the Member or using any portion of such proceeds for any purpose 

other than to satisfy any amounts owed by such Member to the Mutual. 

 

18. Further Blanket Encumbrances.  The Mutual agrees that it will not consent 

to any further blanket lien or blanket deed of trust encumbering real property which is 

subject to Occupancy Agreements owned by Members on the List without giving 

Lender sixty (60) days prior written notice. 

19. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either 

party by giving sixty (60) days prior written notice of said termination to the other party; 

provided, however, that following any such termination, the terms and provisions of this 

Agreement shall remain in effect as to all Memberships, Certificates, and Occupancy 

Agreements then transferred or pledged to Lender as of the date of such termination, 

until (a) such time as the obligations secured by such transferred or pledged 

Memberships, Certificates, and Occupancy Agreements have been satisfied or (b) 

Lender has acquired such Memberships, Certificates, and Occupancy Agreements 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 13 of 18



 

12  

pursuant to its right of foreclosure or assignment in lieu of foreclosure and such 

Memberships, Certificates, and Occupancy Agreements have been transferred to 

eligible Members approved by the Mutual, whichever occurs first. 

20. Recording of Memorandum of Occupancy Agreement.  Upon Lender’s 

request, the Mutual shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lender a Memorandum 

of Occupancy Agreement in a form that will permit recordation of such Memorandum of 

Occupancy Agreement in the Official Records of Orange County, California. 

21. Notices. Any notice or consent required pursuant to the terms hereof shall 

be deemed given when personally delivered to an authorized representative of a party 

or if mailed, it shall be deemed given five (5) days after mailed by registered or certified 

mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 

 

If to Mutual: 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
c/o Village Management Services 
24351 El Toro Road 
P. 0. Box 2220 
Laguna Hills, California 92654 
 

If to Lender: 

 
 
 
 

 
or to such other address as either party may specify from time to time. 

22. Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall bind and 

inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the Parties. As used 

herein, the term “Lender” includes, in addition to the lender named herein, (1) any other 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 14 of 18



 

13  

lender; (2) any investor of any type which has then succeeded to the Lender’s right and 

interest in all or any part of the loans subject to this Agreement; (3) any person or 

institution which may service the loans for such institutional lender or investor; and, (4) 

any institutional insurer or institutional guarantor of all or any part of any loan to a 

Member of the Mutual that is subject to this Agreement. The Mutual shall have an 

obligation to notify any person or institution other than the Lender named herein only if 

that person or institution has provided written notice of its interest in a specified 

dwelling unit as provided in Paragraph 21 above. 

23. Miscellaneous. As used herein, words of the masculine gender shall mean 

and include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and words importing 

the singular number shall mean and include the plural number and vice versa. In 

Witness herewith this Agreement has been executed as of the date set forth above.  

 
Lender:     Mutual: 
 
       UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL, 
       a California nonprofit mutual benefit 
      corporation 
 
 
By:       By:        
Its:             Its:    President 
 
 
 
 
By:       By:        
Its:             Its:    Secretary 
 
 
  

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 15 of 18



 

14  

[NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT] 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 16 of 18



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Objective Standards for Approval to Loan within 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 

WHEREAS, United Laguna Woods Mutual (hereinafter United or Corporation), is a nonprofit 
mutual benefit corporation, existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, 
organized for the purpose of providing its Members with housing on a cooperative nonprofit 
basis  pursuant  to  the  provisions  set  forth  in  its  Occupancy   Agreement,   Articles of 
Incorporation, and Bylaws and Board Resolutions (collectively referred to as the “Governing 
Documents”); 

WHEREAS, the Corporation’s Amended and Restated Bylaws (Bylaws) provide that the purpose of 
the Corporation is to “manage, maintain, preserve, and administer the business of a common 
interest development, specifically, a stock cooperative” (Bylaws Article II, Section 1); 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation is authorized to establish policy and 
perform various administrative activities (Bylaws Article II, Section 3); 

WHEREAS, United is a stock cooperative housing development and holds title to all property and 
structures in United wherein each shareholder-member has ownership and is granted of one 
share in the Cooperative and is granted the right to occupy a specific unit pursuant to an 
Occupancy Agreement together with ownership of one share in the cooperative, provided each 
Shareholder-Member meets the a g e  r e q u i r e m e n t  a n d  financialt h e  financial 
qualifications set forth in the Financial Qualifications Policy (rev. 5-23-1809-10-19); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the above authority or otherwise contained in the Governing Documents, 
included among the Board of Directors’ management responsibilities is  the vetting of lenders 
seeking to loan money on manors to Shareholder-Members secured by property within United, in 
order to ensure the continued solvency of the Corporation; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors requires a lender to sign its Recognition Agreement, giving 
United Mutual first right of refusal and agreeing to pay assessments when due in the event the 
member defaults in its obligation to pay assessments; 

1. WHEREAS, through counsel, the Board of Directors has enumerated objective criteria lenders
must satisfy in order to loan to Shareholder- Members within United, including that the
perspective prospective lender iIs either a state or federally chartered bank or credit union.;

: 

1. Is either a state or federally chartered bank or credit union;
2. Insures  each  deposit  account  through  by  the  Federal  Deposit  Insurance  Corporation

(FDIC), the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA) or otherwise, up to $250,000.00 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 17 of 18



per account and backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; and 
3. Meets or exceeds the Capital Requirement pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 3.10.
Must sign a recognition agreement giving United Mutual first right of refusal 
3. The obligation of the lender to pay assessments in default.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the following resolution is adopted by the Board of 
Directors: 

1. Acknowledging and Approving Qualified Lenders. The Corporation, by and through its
Board of Directors, is authorized to approve lenders based on confirmation of satisfaction of 
the three three objective criteria set forth above, as follows:that the prospective lender is 
either a state or federally chartered bank or credit union. 

Step 1Confirm the institution is Insured. If the institution is a state or federal bank or savings 
association, start by going to the FDIC home page at www.fdic.gov/ and clicking on the 
“Deposit Insurance” tab and selecting “Bankfind” and entering the bank information. Credit 
unions are supervised and insured by the NCUA, and confirmation of insurance may be 
obtained at https://www.ncua.gov/ by clicking on the Research a Credit Union link and entering 
the institution’s name. As long as the institution’s name is returned by either the FDIC or 
NCUA, the institution has satisfied criteria one and two. 

Step 2 
Confirm the institution meets or exceeds the Capital Requirement pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 
3.10. All national banks and federal savings associations are subject to the Capital 
Requirement pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 3.10. Therefore, if the institution is a national bank or 
federal savings association, and it is insured by either FDIC or NCUA, it satisfies all three 
objective criteria. If the institution is not a national bank or federal savings association, an 
officer or director of the institution must sign an affidavit under penalty of perjury under the 
laws of the State of California attesting to the fact that the institution meets or exceeds the 
Capital Requirement pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 3.10. 

If both the above steps are satisfied, the institution may be deemed an approved lender and 
upon execution of a Recognition Agreement, allowed to loan on property to Shareholder- 
Members within United. Otherwise the institution should be advised that it fails to meet the 
objective criteria established to ensure the continued viability of the Corporation, that they 
are not approved to loan money on United property to United Shareholder-Members. 

2. Further Acts. The Board of Directors may do and perform such other acts and things as
may be reasonably necessary and proper in order to carry into effect the provisions of this 
Resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER  RESOLVED, that the officers,  directors  and agents  of  this Corporation 
are authorized to carry out the purpose of this Resolution. 

NOVEMBER Initial Notification 
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board. 
Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no 
less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 18 of 18



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: November 12, 2019 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Revision of Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a resolution to adopt revisions to Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit. 

BACKGROUND 

The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) requested staff to review and 
revise the current Alteration Standards for applicability, usefulness, and current technology.  

On September 19, 2019, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) 
reviewed this Standard. The Committee voted to recommend the item for approval by the 
Board. 

Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit was last revised in January 2016, via Resolution 01-
16-08. 

DISCUSSION 

Due to the continued popularity of the various components involved in the remodel process, 
the ACSC has reviewed the existing standard pertaining to Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water 
Unit. The following sections are proposed to be revised as follows:   

§2.3  Exposed exterior installations must be enclosed in  in require a 3/85/8" CDXthick plywood 
cabinet to be built, textured (to match exterior wall) or paneled and painted inside and out 
to match the color of the building, and installed over softener tanks. All exposed plumbing 
shall be painted color of surface to which attached. 

§2.5 Softener tanks may be located below grade.Isolation valves for emergency shut-off will be 
required. 

§2.8 Approval of landscape installation to conceal the soft water unit cabinets will be required. 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None. 

 

Prepared By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections and Restoration Manager  

Reviewed By: Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 1 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard #27: Soft Water Unit 
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1: Resolution 01-19-XX Revise Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit 
Attachment 2: Revised Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit 
Attachment 3: Redline of Proposed Updated to Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 2 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard #27: Soft Water Unit 
November 12, 2019 
Page 3 

Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Revise Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
amend Alteration Standards and create new Alteration Standards as necessary; and, 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
revise Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE] that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby introduces the revisions to Alteration Standard 27: Soft Water Unit, 
attached as part of the official minutes of this meeting;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-16-08, adopted January 2016, is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution as written.  

NOVEMBER Initial Notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  
Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no 
less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 3 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard #27: Soft Water Unit 
November 12, 2019 
Page 4 

Attachment 2 

STANDARD 27: SOFT WATER UNITS 
MAY 1996 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 

REVISED OCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SEE STANDARD SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.0 INSTALLATIONS 

2.1 All installations require approval by the Permits and Inspections Office prior to 
commencing the work. 

2.2 Tanks may be located in a garage, water heater cabinet, or outside of unit as 
approved by the Permits and Inspections Office. 

2.3 Exposed exterior installations must be enclosed in a 5/8" CDX plywood cabinet, 
textured (to match exterior wall) or paneled and painted inside and out to match 
the color of the building. All exposed plumbing shall be painted color of surface to 
which attached. 

2.4 Pipe runs shall be kept to a minimum. 

2.5 Isolation valves for emergency shut-off will be required. 

2.6 Soft water units shall be connected directly to the service line of the manor 
owner/owners' name that appears on the permit. 

2.7 No regenerative-type softeners will be allowed as per all applicable laws. 
2.8 Approval of landscape installation to conceal the soft water unit cabinets will be 

required. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 4 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard #27: Soft Water Unit 
November 12, 2019 
Page 5 

Attachment 3 

SECTION STANDARD 27: SOFT WATER UNITS 
MAY 1996 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 

REVISED OCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SEE STANDARD SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
1.1 PERMITS AND FEES: A Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration is required for all 

alterations to the building. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required. All 
fees for both Mutual and City permits shall be paid for by the Member and/or his 
contractor. Member and/or his contractor must supply the Manor Alterations 
Department with City permit numbers prior to beginning work. 

1.2 MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITY: The Member is solely responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of all alterations to the building. Removal may be 
required upon sale of a manor, or deterioration of the alteration.  Further, 
Member(s) are expected to provide neighboring residents an estimated timeline 
for construction, and advance notice of excessive construction-related noise that 
may occur. 

1.3 CODES AND REGULATIONS: All work shall comply with applicable local, state, 
and federal requirements including but not limited to the current edition of the 
Uniform Building Code. 

1.4  WORK HOURS: Contractors working for residents at individual manors and in 
carports are permitted to work from 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM Monday through 
Friday.  No work whatsoever shall be permitted on Saturday and Sunday, and 
construction is restricted to 6 months out of every 12 months of the year. 

1.5 PLANS: The Member applying for a Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) shall 
provide to the Manor Alterations Department a detailed plan(s) for approval 
indicating all work to be done, i.e., size, location, description and specifications. 

1.6 DUMPSITES: The premises shall be kept free from accumulation of waste 
materials and/or rubbish caused by the construction work. Member and/or his 
contractor is responsible for removal of debris and excess material and must 
leave work areas "BROOM CLEAN" daily. USE OF COMMUNITY DUMPSITES 
FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED DUMPING IS NOT PERMITTED.  
Contractor’s dumpsters, if required, must have location approved by the Manor 
Alterations Department. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 5 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard #27: Soft Water Unit 
November 12, 2019 
Page 6 
 

 
 

1.7 CONTRACTOR: Installation must be performed by a California  
          licensed contractor of the appropriate trade. 
 
1.8     CONTRACTOR’S CONDUCT: Member’s contractor(s), their personnel, and sub-

contractors shall refrain at all times from using     
profanity, abusive or loud language, and must wear shirts at all times.  Radio, 
MP3, CD or cassette players are not permitted on the project site.  Contractor 
personnel will, at all times, extend and exhibit a courteous demeanor to 
residents. 

 
 
2.0 INSTALLATIONS 

 
2.1 All installations will be approvedrequire approval by the Manor Alterations 

DepartmentPermits and Inspections Office prior to commencing the work. 
 
2.2 Tanks maywill be located in a garage, water heater cabinet, or outside of unit as 

approved by the Permits and Inspections OfficeManor Alterations Department. 
 
2.3 Exposed exterior installations must be enclosed in  in require a 3/85/8" CDXthick 

plywood cabinet to be built, textured (to match exterior wall) or paneled and 
painted inside and out to match the color of the building, and installed over 
softener tanks. All exposed plumbing shall be painted color of surface to which 
attached. 

 
2.4 Pipe runs shall be kept to a minimum. 
 
2.5 Softener tanks may be located below grade.Isolation valves for emergency shut-

off will be required. 
 
2.6 Soft water units shall be connected directly to the service line of the manor 

owner/owners' name that appears on the permit. 
 
2.7 No regenerative-type softeners will be allowed as per all applicable laws. 
 
2.8 Approval of landscape installation to conceal the soft water unit cabinets will be 

required. 

 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 6 of 6



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: November 12, 2019 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a resolution to adopt revisions to Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation. 

BACKGROUND 

The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) requested staff to review and 
revise the current Alteration Standards for applicability, usefulness, and current technology.  

On September 19, 2019, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) 
reviewed this Standard. The Committee voted to recommend the item for approval by the 
Board. 

Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation was last revised in January 2016, via 
Resolution 01-16-08. 

DISCUSSION 

Due to the continued popularity of the various components involved in the remodel process, 
the ACSC has reviewed the existing standard pertaining to Alteration Standard 30: Water 
Heater Relocation. The following sections are proposed to be revised as follows:   

§2.1 Water heaters located outside of the manor unit must be enclosed in an exterior storage
cabinet. Cabinets shall be textured (to match exterior building wall) or paneled and 
painted to match the color of the building. Cabinets shall be painted on all sides (inside 
and out). Future costs for the maintenance of the cabinet will be at Mutual member’s 
expense. 

§2.8 All exterior water heaters are required to be wrapped in a R-11 insulated blanket or equal.

§2.9 All installation shall meet code regulations for adequate earthquake strapping

§3.5 Any new or replaced change in the water heater tank that is, or new tank installed at time
of relocation of the water heater will be 100% at the Mutual member’s expense. 

§4.2 All installations shall meet current electrical codes.Exposed rigid conduit shall be painted
to match the color of the surface it is on. 

§4.3 All electrical conductors shall be installed in rigid or flexible conduit.Dimensions shown on
the enclosure detail are an approximate. Depending on the size of the water heater and 
the R-11 blanket, the dimensions may be larger. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 1 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None. 

 

Prepared By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections and Restoration Manager  

Reviewed By: Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1:  Resolution 01-19-XX Revise Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater 

Relocation 
Attachment 2: Revised Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
Attachment 3: Redline of Proposed Updated to Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater 

Relocation 
  

  

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 2 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 3 

Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Revise Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
amend Alteration Standards and create new Alteration Standards as necessary; and, 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
revise Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby introduces the revisions to Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater 
Relocation, attached as part of the official minutes of this meeting;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-16-08, adopted January 2016, is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution as written.  

NOVEMBER Initial Notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and 
seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the 
satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution 
to the next available Board Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with 
Civil Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 3 of 14



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 4 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 4 

Attachment 2 

STANDARD 30: WATER HEATER RELOCATION 
MAY 1996 

REVISED SEPTEMBER 2003, RESOLUTION 01-03-132 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 
REVISED OCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SEE STANDARD SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1 Water heaters located outside of the unit must be enclosed in an exterior storage 
cabinet. Cabinets shall be textured (to match exterior building wall) or paneled 
and painted to match the color of the building. Cabinets shall be painted on all 
sides (inside and out). Future costs for the maintenance of the cabinet will be at 
Mutual member’s expense. 

2.2 All storage cabinets will be constructed per standard plan drawings available at 
the Permits and Inspections Office in the Community Center. 

The cabinets are designed to conceal a single water heater. Any deviation from 
the Standard Plan, such as to allow for a water softener, must have approval 
from the Permits and Inspections Office and meet all other existing Mutual 
Standards. 

2.3 Water heaters located outside of the unit must respect the view of an adjacent 
unit. The Permits and Inspections Office must approve of the proposed location 
of the water heater for aesthetic and/or maintenance purposes prior to Mutual 
Consent for the alteration being issued. 

2.4 All exterior water heaters will be placed on a concrete pad, or approved equal. 

2.5 All exterior water heaters shall be concealed, where possible, by landscape. All 
such landscape installations or modifications in Common Area will be performed 
by the VMS Landscape Division and paid for by the Mutual member. 

2.6 No units will be located on the exterior of the dwelling unit except as outlined in 
this section. 

2.7 Pressure and temperature relief valves and related drainage lines for the water 
heaters, must be installed per current Uniform Building Code and Uniform 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 5 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Plumbing Code. Drain line should lead directly to exterior of building. Certain 
relocations may be permitted to drain to a smitty pan, only with prior approval 
from the Permits and Inspections Office. 

 
 2.8 All exterior water heaters are required to be wrapped in a R-11 insulated 

blanket or equal. 
 

2.9 All installation shall meet code regulations for adequate earthquake strapping 
 
 
3.0 PLUMBING 

 
3.1 All plumbing supply and distribution lines will be of Type L copper. No galvanized 

or plastic pipe fittings will be allowed. 
 
3.2 Pressure and temperature relief valve drainage lines will be of type L copper or 

CPVC pipe. 
 
3.3 No exposed plumbing will be permitted for relocated units. All plumbing and 

required insulation will be enclosed with an approved Thermo Cell cover and 
painted to match the surface it is on. 

 
3.4 All penetrations through exterior walls shall be completely sealed and water-tight. 
 
3.5 Any new or replaced water heater tank that is installed at time of relocation will 

be 100% at the Mutual member’s expense. 
 
EXCEPTION: Any existing tank exceeding the serviceable life of the water 
heater, as set by the Mutual, will be replaced by the Mutual at no cost to the 
resident 

 
4.0 ELECTRICAL 

 
4.1 All exterior conduit placements must first be approved by the VMS Permits and 

Inspections Office. 
 
4.2 All installations shall meet current electrical codes. 
 
Dimensions shown on the enclosure detail are an approximate. Depending on the size 

of the water heater and the R-11 blanket, the dimensions may be larger. 
 
5.0 STRAPPING 
 

5.1 All new or relocated water heaters will be anchored or strapped to resist 
horizontal displacement due to earthquake motion per the current edition of the 
Uniform Building Code. 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 6 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 6 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 7 of 14



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 8 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 7 
 

 
 

Attachment 3 

STANDARD 30: WATER HEATER RELOCATION 
MAY 1996 

REVISED SEPTEMBER 2003, RESOLUTION 01-03-132 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 
REVISED OCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

 
 
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
1.1 PERMITS AND FEES: A Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration is required for all 

alterations to the building. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required. All 
fees for both Mutual and City permits shall be paid for by the Member and/or his 
contractor. Member and/or his contractor must supply the Manor Alterations 
Department with City permit numbers prior to beginning work. 

 
1.2 MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITY: The Member is solely responsible for the 

maintenance and repair of all alterations to the building. Removal may be 
required upon sale of a manor, or deterioration of the alteration.  Further, 
Member(s) are expected to provide neighboring residents an estimated timeline 
for construction, and advance notice of excessive construction-related noise that 
may occur. 

 
1.3 CODES AND REGULATIONS: All work shall comply with applicable local, state, 

and federal requirements including but not limited to the current edition of the 
Uniform Building Code. 

 
1.4 WORK HOURS: Contractors working for residents at individual manors and in 

carports are permitted to work from 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM Monday through 
Friday.  No work whatsoever shall be permitted on Saturday and Sunday, and 
construction is restricted to 6 months out of every 12 months of the year. 

 
1.5 PLANS: The Member applying for a Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) shall 

provide to the Manor Alterations Department a detailed plan(s) for approval 
indicating all work to be done, i.e., size, location, description and specifications.  

 
1.6 DUMPSITES: The premises shall be kept free from accumulation of waste 

materials and/or rubbish caused by the construction work. Member and/or his 
contractor is responsible for removal of debris and excess material and must 
leave work areas "BROOM CLEAN" daily. USE OF COMMUNITY DUMPSITES 
FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED DUMPING IS NOT PERMITTED.  
Contractor’s dumpsters, if required, must have location approved by the Manor 
Alterations Department. 

 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 9 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 8 
 

 
 

1.7 CONTRACTOR: Installation must be performed by a California licensed 
contractor of the appropriate trade. 

 
1.8     CONTRACTOR’S CONDUCT: Member’s contractor(s), their personnel, and sub-

contractors shall refrain at all times from using     
profanity, abusive or loud language, and must wear shirts at all times.  Radio, 
MP3, CD or cassette players are not permitted on the project site.  Contractor 
personnel will, at all times, extend and exhibit a courteous demeanor to 
residents. 

SEE STANDARD SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

 
2.0 APPLICATIONS 

 
2.1 Water heaters located outside of the manor unit must be enclosed in an exterior 

storage cabinet. Cabinets shall be textured (to match exterior building wall) or 
paneled and painted to match the color of the building. Cabinets shall be painted 
on all sides (inside and out). Future costs for the maintenance of the cabinet will 
be at Mutual member’s expense. 

 
2.2 All storage cabinets will be constructed per standard plan drawings available at 

the Permits and Inspections OfficeManor Alterations Department inOffice in the 
Community Center. 

 
 The cabinets are designed to conceal a single water heater. Any deviation from 

the Standard Plan, such as to allow for a water softener, must have approval 
from the Manor Alterations DepartmentPermits and Inspections Office and meet 
all other existing Mutual Standards. 

 
2.3 Water heaters located outside of the manor unit must respect the view of an 

adjacent unitmanor. The Permits and Inspections OfficeManor Alterations 
Department mustOffice must approve of the proposed location of the water 
heater for aesthetic and/or maintenance purposes prior to Mutual Consent for 
Manor the Aalteration being issued. 

 
2.4 All exterior water heaters will be placed on a concrete pad, or approved equal. 
 
2.5 All exterior water heaters shall be concealed, where possible, by landscape. All 

such landscape installations or modifications in Common Area will be performed 
by the VMS Landscape Division and paid for by the Mutual member. 

 
2.7 No units will be located on the exterior of the dwelling unit except as outlined in 

this section.  
 
2.7 Pressure and temperature relief valves and related drainage lines for the water 

heaters, must be installed per current Uniform Building Code and Uniform 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 10 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 9 

Plumbing Code. Drain line should lead directly to exterior of building. Certain 
relocations may be permitted to drain to a smitty pan, only with prior approval 
from the Permits and Inspections OfficeManor Alterations Department. 

 2.8 All exterior water heaters are required to be wrapped in a R-11 insulated 
blanket or equal. 

2.9 All installation shall meet code regulations for adequate earthquake strapping 

3.0 PLUMBING 

3.3 All plumbing supply and distribution lines will be of Type L copper. No galvanized 
or plastic pipe fittings will be allowed. 

3.4 Pressure and temperature relief valve drainage lines will be of type L copper or 
CPVC pipe. 

3.3 No exposed plumbing will be permitted for relocated units. All plumbing and 
required insulation will be enclosed with an approved Thermo Cell cover and 
painted to match the surface it is on. 

3.4 All penetrations through exterior walls shall be completely sealed and water-tight. 

3.6 Any new or replaced change in the water heater tank that is, or new tank 
installed at time of relocation of the water heater will be 100% at the Mutual 
member’s expense. 

EXCEPTION: Any existing tank exceeding the serviceable life of the water 
heater, as set by the Mutual, will be replaced by the Mutual at no cost to the 
resident 

4.0 ELECTRICAL 

4.1 All exterior conduit placementplacements must first be approved by the VMS 
Permits and Inspections Office.Manor Alterations Department. 

4.2 All installations shall meet current electrical codes.Exposed rigid conduit shall be 
painted to match the color of the surface it is on. 

4.3 All electrical conductors shall be installed in rigid or flexible conduit.Dimensions 
shown on the enclosure detail are an approximate. Depending on the size of the 
water heater and the R-11 blanket, the dimensions may be larger. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 11 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 10 
 

 
 

5.0 STRAPPING 
 

5.2 All new or relocated water heaters will be anchored or strapped to resist 
horizontal displacement due to earthquake motion per the current edition of the 
Uniform Building Code. 
 
 

 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 12 of 14



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 30: Water Heater Relocation 
November 12, 2019 
Page 11 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 13 of 14



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 14 of 14



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: November 12, 2019 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a resolution to adopt revisions to Alteration Standard 36: Ramps. 

BACKGROUND 

The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) requested staff to review and 
revise the current Alteration Standards for applicability, usefulness, and current technology.  

On September 19, 2019, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) 
reviewed this Standard. The Committee voted to recommend the item for approval by the 
Board. 

Alteration Standard 36: Ramps was last revised in January 2016, via Resolution 01-16-08. 

DISCUSSION 

Due to the continued popularity of the various components involved in the remodel process, 
the ACSC has reviewed the existing standard pertaining to Alteration Standard 36: Ramps. 
The following sections are proposed to be revised as follows:   

2.1. Pedestrian ramp is a sloping accessible route intended for pedestrian traffic to and 
from a manorunit. 

3.1. Materials Concrete and/or block with a minimum 3.5 inches pour; and heavy 
broom-swept finish on the surface. 

3.2.2. Slope. The maximum slope of ramps shall be no greater than 1 
unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (8.33 percent slope). 
Transitions from ramps to walks, gutters or streets shall be flush and free of abrupt 
changes. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None. 

Prepared By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections and Restoration Manager 

Reviewed By: Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 1 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1:  Resolution 01-19-XX Revise Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
Attachment 2: Revised Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
Attachment 3: Redline of Proposed Updated to Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 2 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 3 

Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

Revise Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
amend Alteration Standards and create new Alteration Standards as necessary; and, 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes the need to 
revise Alteration Standard 36: Ramps. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby introduces the revisions to Alteration Standard 36: Ramps, attached as 
part of the official minutes of this meeting;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-16-08, adopted January 2016, is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution as written.  

NOVEMBER Initial Notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and 
seconded to  accept the  resolution and allow discussion to  ensure that  the resolution reads to the  
satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board Member  postpones the resolution to the 
next available  Board Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code 
§4360.

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 3 of 32



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 4 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 4 

Attachment 2 

STANDARD 36: RAMPS 
PROPOSED JANUARY 2008 

APRIL 2008, RESOLUTION 01-08-62 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 
REVISED OCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SEE STANDARD SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

2.1. Pedestrian ramp is a sloping accessible route intended for pedestrian traffic to 
and from a unit. 

2.2. Slope is the relative steepness of the land between two points and is 
calculated as follows:  Slope is the horizontal distance and elevation change 
between the two points. The difference in elevation is divided by the distance 
and the resulting fraction is multiplied by 100 to obtain the percentage of 
slope. 

2.3. Cross slope is the slope that is perpendicular to the direction of travel. 

2.4. Level area is a specified surface that does not have a slope in any 
direction exceeding ¼ inch (6.4 mm) in 1 foot (305 mm) from the horizontal 
(2.083 gradient). 

3.0 SPECIFICATIONS 

3.1. Materials Concrete with a minimum 3.5 inches pour; and heavy broom-swept 
finish on the surface. 

3.2. Exterior ramps 

3.2.1. Width. The clear width of ramps shall in no case be less than 36 inches. 
(914mm). Handrails, curbs, wheel guides and/or appurtenances shall not project 
into the required clear width of a ramp. 

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 5 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.2.2. Slope. The maximum slope of ramps shall be no greater than 1 
unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (8 percent slope). Transitions 
from ramps to walks, gutters or streets shall be flush and free of abrupt 
changes. 
3.2.3. Changes in level not exceeding ½ inch.  Abrupt changes in level 
along any ramp shall not exceed ½ inch (12.7mm). When changes in level do 
occur they shall be beveled with a slope no greater than 1 unit vertical in 2 
unit horizontal (50 percent slope).  Changes in level not exceeding ¼ inch 
(6.35 mm) may be vertical. 
3.2.4. Changes in level exceeding ½ inch (12.7 mm) shall be by means 
of a sloped surface not greater than 1 unit vertical in 20 units horizontal (5 
percent slope). 
3.2.5. Cross slope. The cross slope of ramp surfaces shall be no 
greater than ¼ inch (6.35 mm) per foot (2.083-percent slope). 
3.2.6. Ramps, ramp landings and their approaches shall be designed so 
that water will not accumulate on the walking surface. 

 
3.3. Exterior landings 

 
3.3.1. Level. Ramp landings shall be level as defined. 
3.3.2. Height relative to door. The top landing shall not be more than 
½ inch (12.7 mm) lower than the top of the threshold of the doorway.  
(See Figure 1). 
3.3.3. Location of landings. Landings shall be provided at the top and 
bottom of each ramp.   Intermediate landings shall be provided at intervals 
not exceeding 30 inches (762 mm) of vertical rise.  Landings are not 
considered in determining the maximum horizontal distance of each ramp. 
3.3.4. Size of top landings. Top landings shall not be less than 60 inches 
(1524 mm) wide. Top landings shall have a minimum length of not less than 
60 inches (1524 mm) in the direction of the ramp run (5 feet x 5 feet). (See 
Figure 2). 
3.3.5. Size of intermediate landings. The width of intermediate landings 
shall not be less than the clear width of the ramp, and shall not be less 
than 60 inches (1524 mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.6. Size of intermediate turning landings. The width of intermediate 
turning landings shall not be less than the clear width of the ramp, and shall 
not be less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.7. Size of bottom landings. The width of bottom landings shall not be 
less than the clear width of the ramp, and shall not be less than 
60 inches (1524 mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.8. Encroachment of doors.  Doors in any position shall not reduce the 
minimum dimension of the landing to less than 42 inches (1067 mm) and shall 
not reduce the required width by more than 3 inches (76.2 mm) when fully 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 6 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 

 
 

open. That is, the length of the landing shall equal or exceed the width of the 
door plus 43 inches (See Figure 3). 
 

3.4. Maneuvering clearances at doors. 
 

3.4.1. General. Landings at exit doors shall have a length in the direction 
of the door swing of at least 60 inches (1524 mm) and a length opposite 
the direction of the door swing of at least 44 inches (1118 mm) measured 
at right angles to the plane of the door in its closed position. 
3.4.2. Strike edge maneuvering space. The width of the level area on the 
side to which the door swings shall extend at least 24 inches (610 mm) past 
the strike edge of the door. Note:  24 inches (610 mm) is preferred. 
3.4.3. Front approach. The following provisions shall apply to 
swinging doors with front approach: 

3.4.3.1. Pull side For pull side approach the landing shall extend 
in the direction of the door swing at least 60 inches (1524 mm).  
(See Figure 4). 
3.4.3.2. Push side For push side approach, the landing shall extend 
in the direction of the door swing at least 60 inches (1524 mm).  (See 
Figure 4). 
3.4.3.3. Push side with closer and latch Doors with push side 
approach having both a closer and a latch shall be provided with a 
clear and level area extending a minimum of 12 inches (305 mm) past 
the strike edge on the approach side of the door. (See Figure 4). 

3.4.4. Hinge side approach.  The following provisions shall apply to 
swinging doors with hinge side approach: 

3.4.4.1. Pull side Doors with pull side approach shall be provided 
with a level landing not less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth. A 
clear and level area shall extend a minimum of 36 inches (914 mm) 
past the strike edge on the approach side of the door. (See Figure 5).  
Exception.  Doors with pull side approach and a level landing greater 
than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth shall be provided with a clear and 
level area at least 24 inches (610 mm) past the strike edge of the door. 
3.4.4.2. Push side Doors with push side approach shall have a level 
landing not less than 44 inches (1118 mm) in depth, and shall be 
provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 54 inches 
(1372 mm) from the strike edge of the door jamb past the hinge side of 
the door.  Doors with a latch and closer shall have a level landing not 
less than 48 inches(1219 mm) depth at the push side of the door. (See 
Figure 5). 

 
3.4.5. Latch side approach. The following provisions shall apply to 
swinging doors with latch side approach: 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 7 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 7 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.4.5.1. Pull side Doors with pull side approach shall have a level 
landing not less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth, and shall be 
provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 24 
inches (610 mm) past the strike edge on the approach side of the 
door.  (See Figure 6). 
3.4.5.2. Push side Doors with push side approach shall have a level 
floor or landing not less than 44 inches (1118 mm) in depth, and shall 
be provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 24 
inches (610 mm) past the strike edge on the approach side of the 
door.  Doors with a closer shall have a level floor or landing not less 
than 48 inches (1219 mm) depth at the push side of the door.  (See 
Figure 6). 
 

3.5. Handrails 
  

3.5.1. Ramp height. Ramps more than 30 inches (762 mm) above the 
adjacent floor or ground and open on one or both sides shall be provided with 
handrails. 
3.5.2. Where required. Handrails shall be provided at each side of ramps 
when the slope exceeds 1 unit vertical in 20 units vertical (5 % slope).  
Handrails on all ramps shall be continuous. Exception: Ramps that serve 
an individual dwelling unit may have one handrail, except that ramps open 
on one or both sides shall have handrails provided on the open side or 
sides. 
3.5.3. Handrail height. The top of handrails shall be 34 to 38 inches 
(864 to 965 mm) above the ramp surface. 
3.5.4. Handrail ends.  Handrail ends shall be returned. 
3.5.5. Handrail extension. Handrails shall extend a minimum of 12 inches 
(305 mm) beyond the top and bottom of the ramp. Where the extension 
creates a hazard, the termination of the extension shall be rounded or 
returned smoothly to the floor, wall or post.  (See Figure 7). 
3.5.6. Handrail projections. Handrails projecting from a wall shall have a 
space of 1-1/2 inches (38.1 mm) between the wall and the handrail.  
Handrails shall not reduce the required minimum clear width of the ramps. 
Handrails may be located in a recess if the recess is a maximum of 3 inches 
(76.2 mm) deep and extends at least 18 inches (457 mm) above the top of 
the rail.  Any wall or other surface adjacent to the handrail shall be free of 
sharp or abrasive elements. 
 3.5.7. Handrail grips. The handgrip portion of handrails shall not be less 
than 1¼ inches (31.75 mm) nor more than 2 inches (50.8 mm) in cross-
sectional dimension or the shape shall provide an equivalent gripping 
surface. The handgrip portion of the handrails shall have a minimum radius 
of 1.8 inch (3.17 mm). Handrails shall not rotate with their fittings. (See 
Figure 8). 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 8 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.6.  Curbs and wheel guides. 
 

3.6.1. Application  Ramps exceeding 10 feet (3048 mm) in length and ramp 
landings having a vertical drop exceeding 4 inches (101.6 mm), shall be 
provided with one of the following: 
3.6.2. Specifications Guide curbs a minimum of 2 inches (50.8 mm), in 
height at each side; or wheel guide rails at each side, centered 2 to 
4 inches (50.8 to 101.6 mm) above the surface of the ramp, or ramp 
landing.  (See Figure 7). 
3.6.3. Exception:  Ramps or ramp landings bounded by a wall or fence. 

 
3.7.  Hazards on accessible routes 

 
3.7.1. Headroom clearance. Ramps that are a part of a dwelling’s 
primary egress system shall have a minimum clear headroom of 84 inches 
(2134 mm). 
3.7.2. Exception: Doorways and archways less than 24 inches (610mm) in 
depth may have a minimum clear headroom of 80 inches (2032 mm). 
3.7.3. Overhanging obstructions.  Any obstruction that overhangs a ramp 
shall be a minimum of 84 inches (2032 mm) above the walking surface as 
measured from the bottom of the obstruction. (See Figure 9). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 9 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 9 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.8.  Figures 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 10 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 10 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 11 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 11 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 12 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 12 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 13 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 13 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 14 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 14 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Agenda Item # 13c 

Page 15 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 15 
 
 
 
 

 
  Agenda Item # 13c 

Page 16 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 16 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 17 of 32



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 18 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 17 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Attachment 3 
 

SECTION STANDARD 36: RAMPS 
PROPOSED JANUARY 2008 

APRIL 2008, RESOLUTION 01-08-62 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JUNE 2011, RESOLUTION 01-11-104 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 01-16-08 
REVISED NOVEMBEROCTOBER 2019, RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

 
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

1.1  PERMITS AND FEES: A Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations is required for 
all alterations to the building. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required. 
All fees for both Mutual and City permits shall be paid for by the Member 
and/or his contractor. Member and/or his contractor must supply the Manor 
Alterations Department with City permit numbers prior to beginning work. 

 
1.2  MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITY: The Member is solely responsible for the 

maintenance and repair of all alterations to the building. Removal may be 
required upon sale of a manor, or deterioration of the alteration. Further, 
Member(s) are expected to provide neighboring 
residents an estimated timeline for construction, and advance notice of 
excessive construction-related noise that may occur. 

 
1.3  CODES AND REGULATIONS: All work shall comply with applicable local, 

state, and federal requirements including but not limited to the current edition 
of the Uniform Building Code. 

 
1.4  WORK HOURS: Contractors working for residents at individual manors 

and in carports are permitted to work from 9:00 AM – 
5:00 PM Monday through Friday.  No work whatsoever shall be 
permitted on Saturday and Sunday, and construction is restricted to 6 
months out of every 12 months of the year. 

 

1.5  PLANS: The Member applying for a Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) 
shall provide to the Manor Alterations Department a detailed plan(s) for 
approval indicating all work to be done, i.e., size, location, description and 
specifications. 

 

 
 

1.6  DUMPSITES: The premises shall be kept free from accumulation of waste 
materials and/or rubbish caused by the construction work. Member and/or his 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 19 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 18 
 
 
 
 

 
 

contractor is responsible for removal of debris and excess material and must 
leave work areas "BROOM CLEAN" daily. 
USE OF COMMUNITY DUMPSITES FOR CONSTRUCTION 
RELATED DUMPING IS NOT PERMITTED. Contractor’s dumpsters, if 
required, must have location approved by the Manor Alterations Department. 

 
1.7  CONTRACTOR: Installation must be performed by a California 
  licensed contractor of the appropriate trade. 

 
1.8  CONTRACTOR’S CONDUCT: Member’s contractor(s), their personnel, and 

sub-contractors shall refrain at all times from using 
profanity, abusive or loud language, and must wear shirts at all times. Radio, 
MP3, CD or cassette players are not permitted on the project site. Contractor 
personnel will, at all times, extend and exhibit a courteous demeanor to 
residents. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1. Pedestrian ramp is a sloping accessible route intended for pedestrian traffic to 

and from a manorunit. 
 

2.2. Slope is the relative steepness of the land between two points and is 
calculated as follows:  Slope is the horizontal distance and elevation change 
between the two points. The difference in elevation is divided by the distance 
and the resulting fraction is multiplied by 100 to obtain the percentage of 
slope. 

 
2.3. Cross slope is the slope that is perpendicular to the direction of travel. 

 
2.4. Level area is a specified surface that does not have a slope in any 

direction exceeding ¼ inch (6.4 mm) in 1 foot (305 mm) from the horizontal 
(2.083 gradient). 

 
 

3.0 SPECIFICATIONS 
 

3.1. Materials Concrete and/or block with a minimum 3.5 inches pour; and 
heavy broom-swept finish on the surface. 

3.2. Exterior ramps 

3.2.1. Width. The clear width of ramps shall in no case be less than 36 
inches. (914mm). Handrails, curbs, wheel guides and/or appurtenances 
shall not project into the required clear width of a ramp  

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 20 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 19 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.2.2. Slope. The maximum slope of ramps shall be no greater than 1 
unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (8.33 percent slope). 
Transitions from ramps to walks, gutters or streets shall be flush and free of 
abrupt changes. 
3.2.3. Changes in level not exceeding ½ inch.  Abrupt changes in level along 
any ramp shall not exceed ½ inch (12.7mm). When changes in level do occur 
they shall be beveled with a slope no greater than 1 unit vertical in 2 unit 
horizontal (50 percent slope).  Changes in level not exceeding ¼ inch (6.35 mm) 
may be vertical. 
3.2.4. Changes in level exceeding ½ inch (12.7 mm) shall be by means of 
a sloped surface not greater than 1 unit vertical in 20 units horizontal (5 
percent slope). 
3.2.5. Cross slope. The cross slope of ramp surfaces shall be no greater 
than ¼ inch (6.35 mm) per foot (2.083-percent slope). 
3.2.6. Ramps, ramp landings and their approaches shall be designed so 
that water will not accumulate on the walking surface. 

 
3.3. Exterior landings 

 
3.3.1. Level. Ramp landings shall be level as defined. 
3.3.2. Height relative to door. The top landing shall not be more than ½ 
inch (12.7 mm) lower than the top of the threshold of the doorway.  (See 
Figure 1). 
3.3.3. Location of landings. Landings shall be provided at the top and bottom 
of each ramp.   Intermediate landings shall be provided at intervals not 
exceeding 30 inches (762 mm) of vertical rise.  Landings are not considered in 
determining the maximum horizontal distance of each ramp. 
3.3.4. Size of top landings. Top landings shall not be less than 60 inches 
(1524 mm) wide. Top landings shall have a minimum length of not less than 60 
inches (1524 mm) in the direction of the ramp run (5 feet x 5 feet). (See Figure 
2). 
3.3.5. Size of intermediate landings. The width of intermediate landings 
shall not be less than the clear width of the ramp, and shall not be less than 
60 inches (1524 mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.6. Size of intermediate turning landings. The width of intermediate 
turning landings shall not be less than the clear width of the ramp, and shall 
not be less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.7. Size of bottom landings. The width of bottom landings shall not be less 
than the clear width of the ramp, and shall not be less than 60 inches (1524 
mm) in length (See Figure 2). 
3.3.8. Encroachment of doors.  Doors in any position shall not reduce the 
minimum dimension of the landing to less than 42 inches (1067 mm) and shall 
not reduce the required width by more than 3 inches (76.2 mm) when fully open. 
That is, the length of the landing shall equal or exceed the width of the door plus 
42 inches (See Figure3). 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 21 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 20 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
3.4. Maneuvering clearances at doors. 

 
3.4.1. General. Landings at exit doors shall have a length in the direction of 
the door swing of at least 60 inches (1524 mm) and a length opposite the 
direction of the door swing of at least 44 inches (1118 mm) measured at right 
angles to the plane of the door in its closed position. 
3.4.2. Strike edge maneuvering space. The width of the level area on the 
side to which the door swings shall extend at least 24 inches (610 mm) past the 
strike edge of the door. Note:  24 inches (610 mm) is preferred. 
3.4.3. Front approach. The following provisions shall apply to swinging 
doors with front approach: 

3.4.3.1. Pull side For pull side approach the landing shall extend 
in the direction of the door swing at least 60 inches (1524 mm).  
(See Figure 4). 
3.4.3.2. Push side For push side approach, the landing shall extend 
in the direction of the door swing at least 60 inches (1524 mm).  (See 
Figure 4). 
3.4.3.3. Push side with closer and latch Doors with push side 
approach having both a closer and a latch shall be provided with a 
clear and level area extending a minimum of 12 inches (305 mm) past 
the strike edge on the approach side of the door. (See Figure 4). 

3.4.4. Hinge side approach.  The following provisions shall apply to swinging 
doors with hinge side approach: 

3.4.4.1. Pull side Doors with pull side approach shall be provided 
with a level landing not less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth. A 
clear and level area shall extend a minimum of 36 inches (914 mm) 
past the strike edge on the approach side of the door. (See Figure 5).  
Exception.  Doors with pull side approach and a level landing greater 
than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth shall be provided with a clear and 
level area at least 24 inches (610 mm) past the strike edge of the door. 
 3.4.4.2. Push side Doors with push side approach shall have a 
level landing not less than 44 inches (1118 mm) in depth, and shall be 
provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 54 
inches (1372 mm) from the strike edge of the door jamb past the hinge 
side of the door.  Doors with a latch and closer shall have a level 
landing not less than 48 inches (1219 mm) depth at the push side of 
the door. (See Figure 5). 

3.4.5. Latch side approach. The following provisions shall apply to 
swinging doors with latch side approach: 

3.4.5.1. Pull side Doors with pull side approach shall have a level 
landing not less than 60 inches (1524 mm) in depth, and shall be 
provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 24 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 22 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 21 
 
 
 
 

 
 

inches (610 mm) past the strike edge on the approach side of the 
door.  (See Figure 6). 
3.4.5.2. Push side Doors with push side approach shall have a level 
floor or landing not less than 44 inches (1118 mm) in depth, and shall 
be provided with a clear and level area extending a minimum of 24 
inches (610 mm) past the strike edge on the approach side of the 
door.  Doors with a closer shall have a level floor or landing not less 
than 48 inches (1219 mm) depth at the push side of the door.  (See 
Figure 6). 

 
3.5. Handrails 

 
3.5.1. Ramp height. Ramps more than 30 inches (762 mm) above the adjacent 
floor or ground and open on one or both sides shall be provided with handrails. 
3.5.2. Where required. Handrails shall be provided at each side of ramps 
when the slope exceeds 1 unit vertical in 20 units vertical (5 % slope).  
Handrails on all ramps shall be continuous. Exception: Ramps that serve an 
individual dwelling unit may have one handrail, except that ramps open on one 
or both sides shall have handrails provided on the open side or sides. 
3.5.3. Handrail height. The top of handrails shall be 34 to 38 inches 
(864 to 965 mm) above the ramp surface. 
3.5.4. Handrail ends.  Handrail ends shall be returned. 
3.5.5. Handrail extension. Handrails shall extend a minimum of 12 inches 
(305 mm) beyond the top and bottom of the ramp. Where the extension creates 
a hazard, the termination of the extension shall be rounded or returned smoothly 
to the floor, wall or post.  (See Figure 7). 
3.5.6. Handrail projections. Handrails projecting from a wall shall have a 
space of 1-1/2 inches (38.1 mm) between the wall and the handrail.  Handrails 
shall not reduce the required minimum clear width of the ramps. Handrails may 
be located in a recess if the recess is a maximum of 3 inches (76.2 mm) deep 
and extends at least 18 inches (457 mm) above the top of the rail.  Any wall or 
other surface adjacent to the handrail shall be free of sharp or abrasive 
elements. 
3.5.7. Handrail grips. The handgrip portion of handrails shall not be less than 
1¼ inches (31.75 mm) nor more than 2 inches (50.8 mm) in cross-sectional 
dimension or the shape shall provide an equivalent gripping surface. The 
handgrip portion of handrails shall have a minimum radius of 1/8 inch (3.17 mm). 
Handrails shall not rotate within their fittings.  (See Figure 8). 
 

3.6.  Curbs and wheel guides. 
 

3.6.1. Application  Ramps exceeding 10 feet (3048 mm) in length and ramp 
landings having a vertical drop exceeding 4 inches (101.6 mm), shall be 
provided with one of the following: 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 23 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 22 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.6.2. Specifications Guide curbs a minimum of 2 inches (50.8 mm), in height 
at each side; or wheel guide rails at each side, centered 2 to 
4 inches (50.8 to 101.6 mm) above the surface of the ramp, or ramp landing.  
(See Figure 7). 
3.6.3. Exception:  Ramps or ramp landings bounded by a wall or fence. 
 

3.7.  Hazards on accessible routes 
 

3.7.1. Headroom clearance. Ramps that are a part of a dwelling’s primary 
egress system shall have a minimum clear headroom of 84 inches (2134 
mm). 
3.7.2. Exception: Doorways and archways less than 24 inches (610mm) in 
depth may have a minimum clear headroom of 80 inches (2032 mm). 
3.7.3. Overhanging obstructions.  Any obstruction that overhangs a ramp 
shall be a minimum of 84 inches (2032 mm) above the walking surface as 
measured from the bottom of the obstruction. (See Figure 9). 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 24 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 23 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3.8.  Figures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 25 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 24 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 26 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 25 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 27 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 26 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 28 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 27 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 29 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 28 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Agenda Item # 13c 

Page 30 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 29 
 
 
 
 

 
  Agenda Item # 13c 

Page 31 of 32



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revision of Alteration Standard 36: Ramps 
November 12, 2019 
Page 30 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 32 of 32



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: November 12, 2019 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: VMS Liaison Committee for United Laguna Woods Mutual  
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposed charter for the creation of the VMS Liaison Committee for United 
Laguna Woods Mutual. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of United Laguna 
Woods Mutual and California Corporations Code Section 7212, the Board of Directors is 
entitled to create committees to assist it in the execution of their powers and duties. 
 
On September 23, 2019, the Governing Documents Review Committee by a vote of three in 
favor to one against recommended the Board approve the proposed charter for the creation of 
the Village Management Services, Inc. (VMS) Liaison Committee for United Laguna Woods 
Mutual. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The proposed VMS Liaison Committee’s role would be advisory pursuant to Corporations 
Code Section 7212(b), in which the Committee Members (as defined in Article III) would serve 
to liaise between United and VMS. The Committee would interface with the Board, VMS, legal 
counsel, and other relevant individuals, and provide reports and recommendations, as 
appropriate, to and from United and VMS. 
 
Service on the Committee would be comprised of the three representatives appointed by 
United to serve on the VMS Board with the term of the Committee membership concurrent with 
the representatives’ term of service on the VMS Board. Committee members would serve at 
the pleasure of the Board, and may be removed with or without cause, at any time, in the 
Board’s sole discretion. Service on the Committee would impose a “good standing” 
requirement as outlined in the proposed charter. 
 
The proposed committee would interface and liaise between United and VMS on matters of 
common interest to these corporations. It is anticipated that the Committee would consult with 
relevant individuals, study pertinent documents, attend the meetings of other corporate boards 
and committees within Laguna Woods Village, analyze data, draw conclusions and prepare 
reports to the ends of furthering the efficiency and effectiveness of action taken by United and 
VMS.  
 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 1 of 8



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
VMS Liaison Committee for United Laguna Woods Mutual 
November 12, 2019 
Page 2 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Siobhan Foster, COO 
     
Reviewed By:  Jeffrey A. Beaumont, Esq., Corporate Counsel  
     Eve Morton, Landscape Operations Coordinator 
 
Committee Routing: Governing Documents Review Committee 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1:  Charter of the VMS Liaison Committee for United Laguna Woods Mutual 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 2 of 8



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Governing Documents Review Committee 
September 23, 2019 
 
 
ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 
 
Discuss & Consider the creation of the VMS Liaison Committee for United Laguna 
Woods Mutual. 
 
Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of United 
Laguna Woods Mutual and California Corporations Code Section 7212, the Board of 
Directors is entitled to create committees to assist it in the execution of their powers and 
duties. 
 
The proposed committee would interface and liaise between United and VMS on 
matters of common interest to these corporations. It is anticipated that the Committee 
would consult with relevant individuals, study pertinent documents, attend the meetings 
of other corporate boards and committees within Laguna Woods Village, analyze data, 
draw conclusions and prepare reports to the ends of furthering the efficiency and 
effectiveness of action taken by United and VMS. 
 
On September 23, 2019, the Governing Documents Review Committee by a vote of 
three in favor to one against recommended the Board approve the proposed charter for 
the creation of the Village Management Services, Inc. (VMS) Liaison Committee for 
United Laguna Woods Mutual. 
 
A motion was made to adopt the Charter of the VMS Liaison Committee for United 
Laguna Woods Mutual 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 3 of 8



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 4 of 8



I. 
INTRODUCTION 

Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws 
(“Bylaws”) of United Laguna Woods Mutual (“United”) and California Corporations Code 
Section 7212, the Board of Directors (“Board”) is entitled to create committees to assist 
it in the execution of their powers and duties.   This Charter serves to create the VMS 
Liaison Committee for United (“Committee”). 

II. 
PURPOSE 

The Committee’s role is advisory pursuant to Corporations Code Section 
7212(b), in which the Committee Members (as defined in Article III) will serve to liaise 
between United and Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS”).  The Committee will 
interface with the Board, VMS, legal counsel, and other relevant individuals, and provide 
reports and recommendations, as appropriate, to and from United and VMS. 

III. 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

The Committee shall be comprised of the two (2) representatives appointed by 
United to serve on the VMS Board, with the term of Committee membership concurrent 
with the representatives’ term of service on the VMS Board.  However, Article III of this 
Charter cannot be construed to confer any right on United representatives on the VMS 
Board:  Committee Members serve at the leisure of the Board, and may be removed 
with or without cause, at any time, in the Board’s sole discretion. 

Service on the Committee imposes a “good standing” requirement, with good 
standing including satisfaction of each the following: 

1. The Committee Member is current in the payment of assessments
and all other financial obligations to United and the Golden Rain 
Foundation, including collections costs; 
2. No outstanding violations of the governing documents, as
determined by the United Board; 
3. There exists no active dispute, including litigation, between the

RESOLUTION 01-19-XX

CHARTER OF THE 
VMS LIAISON COMMITTEE FOR 

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 5 of 8



Committee Member and the Association, or individual members of the 
Board; and 
4.  Regular attendance at Committee meetings, which requirement
precludes the Committee Member’s absence from three (3) consecutive 
meetings. 

IV. 
SCOPE OF AUTHORITY 

A. Powers and Duties of the Committee 

As an advisory body the Committee’s authority is derived solely from the 
direction of the Board, and the Committee has no implied authority to bind United to 
contractual obligations or to express any opinion on behalf of United. 

 The Committee was formed to interface and liaise between United and VMS on 
matters of common interest to these corporations.  To this end, it is anticipated that the 
Committee will consult with relevant individuals, study pertinent documents, attend the 
meetings of other corporate boards and committees within Laguna Woods Village, 
analyze data, draw conclusions and prepare reports to the ends of furthering the 
efficiency and effectiveness of action taken by United and VMS. 

B. Committee Member Compensation and Conduct 

No Committee Member shall receive compensation for participation on the 
Committee except for reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Committee 
in performing the above-stated duties as authorized by the Board. 

C. Meetings 

The Committee shall meet as necessary, in accordance with the direction of the 
Board, and as required by its duties.  

D. Effect of Decisions by the Committee 

All conclusions and reports of the Committee are merely advisory, which shall be 
evaluated and utilized in the sole discretion of the Board. 

E. Insurance 

United, through Golden Rain Foundation, shall at all times maintain a directors’ 
and officers’ liability insurance policy, as required by law and the governing documents 
(i.e., Bylaws), which shall cover volunteer committee members, among others, for 
actions and/or omissions done in the official capacity of a Member’s service on the 
Committee, and as authorized by the Board. 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 6 of 8



 

 

F.  Confidentiality 
 
 Committee Members are obligated to maintain the confidentiality of information 
obtained in the course of service on the Committee and such information shall only be 
used for its purpose as provided herein. 
 

The Open Meeting Act authorizes boards to meet in executive session to 
consider litigation, matters relating to the formation of contracts, member discipline and 
personnel matters.  (Civil Code Section 4935.)  The underlying principle of the Open 
Meeting Act is transparency.  While focusing primarily on the interests of transparency, 
by way of Civil Code Section 4935, the California legislature has underscored the 
importance of individual and corporate privacy.  If boards were required to discuss such 
sensitive matters in a public forum, strategic advantage would be lost and individuals 
would be irreparably damaged.  It is paramount that Committee Members similarly 
acknowledge and respect the privacy interests of United and its members, exercising 
constant vigilance in the handling of confidential information. 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 7 of 8



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 8 of 8



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: October 23, 2019 

FOR:  Maintenance and Construction Committee 

SUBJECT: Revisions to United M&C Committee Charter 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the revised United Maintenance and Construction Committee Charter to reflect the 
current need of the standing committee (Attachment 1). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 12, 2010, in compliance with Article VII, Section 1 of the United Laguna Hills 
Mutual Bylaws, the Board re-established the Committee to be identified as the Maintenance 
and Construction Committee (M&C) to serve at the pleasure of the Board and to ensure the 
duties and powers of this Committee are determined by the Board, provided that its authority 
be limited to advising the Board and all final actions be subject to the specific approval of the 
Board. 
 
On March 9, 2010, the Board established that the Maintenance and Construction Committee 
would review member Alteration and Variance requests and make recommendations to the 
Board.   
 
On May 9, 2017 (Resolution 01-17-54), pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, Article 12 and 
the Bylaws, the Board established the Architectural Control and Standards Committee as a 
standing committee and separated from the M&C Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff recommends revising the M&C Committee Charter to reflect current duties, as shown in 
the attached resolution.  Revisions from the prior version of the Charter are indicated with 
strike-throughs as shown in Attachment 2. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
There are no fiscal impacts associated with this report. 
 
Prepared By:  Laurie Chavarria, Executive Assistant 
 
Reviewed By:  Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance and Construction Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 

Attachment 1 – Final Version of Revised Committee Charter, Resolution 01-19-XX 
Attachment 2 – Draft Version of Revised Committee Charter, Resolution 01-19-XX 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 1 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
October 23, 2019 
 
 
ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 
 
Entertain a Motion to Revise the United M&C Committee Charter 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding architectural review; and the relationship between the Committee and 
the M&C Department.  A Scribner’s correction will be made to change the word liaison to relationship 
in the fourth paragraph of the resolution. 
 
On May 9, 2017, the Board established the Architectural Control and Standards Committee as a 
standing committee separate from the M&C Committee. The Maintenance and Construction 
Committee’s charter has now been revised to reflect the current focus of this standing committee. The 
Committee shall maintain a working relationship with the Maintenance & Construction Department of 
the Managing Agent’s organization to ensure that the real property and fixtures owned and managed 
by United Laguna Woods Mutual are maintained, reconditioned, improved or augmented as 
necessary or desired to meet the policies established by the Board of Directors, or as required by 
government agencies that have standing in establishing public policy. 
 
A motion was made and unanimously approved to recommend the Board approve revisions to the 
United Maintenance and Construction Committee Charter which reflect the current need of the 
standing committee. 
 
Entertain a Motion to Deny an Appeal from 2096-N for Reasonable Compensation 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the reasoning for Mr. Dounias’ appeal letter; and the shower enclosure 
leak. 
 
On multiple occasions, Mr. Dounias called in to report an unknown leak in his unit.  Mr. Dounias 
believes that a pipe leak in the manor below his caused his carpet to become wet and contaminated.  
After several inspections and environmental testing for the presence of mold in unit 2096-N, staff on 
behalf of the United Board sent a letter to Mr. Dounias denying his request for compensation. The 
denial was based on the inspections performed by staff and the results obtained from the 
environmental testing.  
 
A motion was made and unanimously approved to recommend the Board deny the appeal for 
reasonable compensation of an unknown amount from Mr. Argires Dounias, shareholder of unit 2096-
N Ronda Granada. 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 2 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revisions to United M&C Committee Charter 
10/23/2019 
Page 2 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 – FINAL VERSION 
 

United Maintenance and Construction  
Committee Charter 

 
RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

 
WHEREAS,  on January 12, 2010, pursuant to Article VII, Section 1 of the Bylaws, the Board 
of Directors of this Corporation re-established the Maintenance & Construction Committee as a 
standing committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2017, pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, Article 12 and the 
Bylaws, the Board established the Architectural Control and Standards Committee as a 
standing committee separate from the M&C Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Maintenance and Construction Committee’s charter is revised to reflect the 
current focus of this standing committee.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 12, 2019, that the Committee shall 
maintain a working relationship with the Maintenance & Construction Department of the 
Managing Agent’s organization to ensure that the real property and fixtures owned and 
managed by United Laguna Woods Mutual are maintained, reconditioned, improved or 
augmented as necessary or desired to meet the policies established by the Board of Directors, 
or as required by government agencies that have standing in establishing public policy; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review maintenance service level 
requirements during the Business Planning process; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review budget requirements, service levels, 
all attendant costs and projected income related to services to be provided by the Maintenance 
and Construction Department and make necessary recommendations to the Finance 
Committee and Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall explore and review suggestions for short-
term and long-term improvements and cost effective programs within the Mutual, for approval 
by the Finance Committee and Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review on a continuing basis long-range 
plans and needs for building and infrastructure maintenance and, in consultation with 
appropriate committees, recommend to the Board of Directors appropriate means for achieving 
such plans and needs; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review as needed the substance of 
specifications used for procurement of goods and services for programs under the review of 
this Committee.  The Committee will consult with the Managing Agent regarding award of 
contracts, as needed.  
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 3 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revisions to United M&C Committee Charter 
10/23/2019 
Page 3 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review all requests for unbudgeted 
components or programs suggested by the Maintenance & Construction Department, other 
committees, and recommend appropriate action to the Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall monitor major Operating and Reserve 
maintenance programs, such as roofing, asphalt maintenance and replacement, external 
painting, and the like; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall establish building colors palette and 
determine primary roof, building and trim colors for buildings, as appropriate; updating the 
palette at least every four years; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall perform such other tasks as may be 
approved and assigned by the Board of Directors; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-10-57 adopted March 9, 2010 is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 4 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revisions to United M&C Committee Charter 
10/23/2019 
Page 4 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 – DRAFT VERSION 
 

United Maintenance and Construction 
Committee Charter 

 
RESOLUTION 01-19-XX10-57 
 
WHEREAS,  on January 12, 2010, pursuant to Article VII, Section 1 of the Bylaws, the Board 
of Directors of this Corporation re-established the Maintenance & Construction Committee as a 
standing committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2017, in pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, Article 12 and the 
Bylaws, the Board established the Architectural Control and Standards Committee as a 
standing committee and separated itself from the M&C Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Maintenance and Construction Committee’s charter is revised to reflect the 
current focus of this standing committee.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 9, 2010November 12, 2019, that the 
Committee shall maintain a working liaisonrelationship with the Maintenance & Construction 
DepartmentDivision of the Managing Agent’s organization to ensure that the real property and 
fixtures owned and managed by United Laguna WoodsHills Mutual are maintained, 
reconditioned, improved or augmented as necessary or desired to meet the policies 
established by the Board of Directors, or as required by government agencies that have 
standing in establishing public policy; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the review procedures for architectural standards and variances 
shall be considered based on, but not limited to, the following criteria: 
   Aesthetic impact (Building, Common Area, Neighbors) 
 Conformity to Local and State Building Codes 
 Conformity to the Mutual governing documents and Davis-Stirling Act   
 
RESOLVED  FURTHER, that the Committee shall review and recommend  to the Board of 
Directors, the disposition of requests for variances from the Alteration Standards with findings 
for the recommended actions including modifications, additions or deletions to Mutual property 
such as, but not limited to walkways, ramps, handrails, street lights, walkway lights, and the 
like; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall maintain requirements that no structural 
alterations including any internal and external physical changes to the dwelling unit, performed 
or caused to be performed by the Member, shall be performed without prior written consent of 
the Corporation.  Prior written consent is given by the Board after proper processing by the 
Member of approved Alteration Standards, or after approval by the Board of a Member’s  
Variance Request; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review maintenance service level 
requirements during the Business Planning process; and 
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 5 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revisions to United M&C Committee Charter 
10/23/2019 
Page 5 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review budget requirements, service levels, 
all attendant costs and projected income related to services to be provided by the Maintenance 
and Construction DepartmentDivision and make necessary recommendations to the Finance 
Committee and Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall explore and review suggestions for short-
term and long-term improvements and cost effective programs within the Mutual, for approval 
by the Finance Committee and Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review on a continuing basis long-range 
plans and needs for building and infrastructure maintenance and, in consultation with 
appropriate committees, recommend to the Board of Directors appropriate means for achieving 
such plans and needs; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review as needed the substance of 
specifications used for procurement of goods and services for programs under the review of 
this Committee.  The Committee will consult with the Managing Agent regarding award of 
contracts, as needed.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall review all requests for unbudgeted capital 
components or programs suggested by the Maintenance & Construction DepartmentDivision, 
other committees, and recommend appropriate action to the Board of Directors, and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall monitor major Operating and Reserve 
maintenance programs, such as roofing, asphalt maintenance and replacement, external 
painting, and the like; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall establish building colors palette and 
determine primary roof, building and trim colors for buildings, as appropriate; updating the 
palette at least every four years; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Committee shall perform such other tasks as may be 
approved and assigned by the Board of Directors; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-10-5729 adopted FebruaryMarch 9, 2010 is 
hereby superseded and cancelled; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 6 of 6



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: November 12, 2019 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Governing Documents Review Committee Charter 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the amended Governing Documents Review Committee Charter 

BACKGROUND 
On November 13, 2012, the Board established a Governing Documents Review Ad Hoc 
Committee for the purposes of reviewing the governing documents for clarity, currency, and 
applicability through regularly announced meetings (Resolution 01-12-185).  

On July 14, 2015, the Board approved an amendment to the Committee Charter (01-15-107). 

DISCUSSION 
The Governing Documents Review Committee reviewed the Charter to include clarifying 
language.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 

Prepared By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor 

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Governing Documents Review Committee Charter Resolution 

Agenda Item # 13f 
Page 1 of 5



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13f 
Page 2 of 5



ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the amendment of the Governing Documents Review 
Committee Charter 

President Margolis made a motion to amend item #4 by replacing ‘upon Board approval’ 
with ‘and Board President and Committee Chair approval’. Director Armendariz 
seconded the motion. 

By a vote of 4-0-1 (Director Bastani opposed) the motion passed. 

Without objection, the Committee approved the following amendments to the Governing 
Documents Review Committee Charter:  

1. Review governing documents including policies, resolution and operating rules
for compliance with applicable laws;

2. Consider conformance, as required, between each governing document with
another governing document;

3. Confer, as appropriate, with United Managing Agent;
4. Consult, as appropriate and upon Board President and Committee Chair

approval, with United Corporate Counsel; and
5. Make regular Committee progress reports and recommendations to the United

Board of Directors regarding proposed revisions to the United governing
documents including policies, resolution and operating rules.

Agenda Item # 13f 
Page 3 of 5



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13f 
Page 4 of 5



RESOLUTION 01-19-XXX 

GOVERNING DOCUMENTS REVIEW COMMITTEE CHARTER 

RESOLVED, December 10, 2019, that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby establishes a Governing Documents Review 
Committee for  the purposes of reviewing the United Laguna Woods 
Mutual governing documents for clarity, legality and current applicability 
through  monthly meetings open to United Members; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board of Directors of this Corporation 
hereby assigns the duties and responsibilities of this Committee as 
follows: 

1. Review governing documents including policies, resolution
and operating rules for compliance with applicable laws;

2. Consider conformance, as required, between each
governing document with another governing document;

3. Confer, as appropriate, with United Managing Agent;
4. Consult, as appropriate and upon approval of Board

President and Committee Chair approval, with United
Corporate Counsel and; 

5. Make regular committee progress reports and
recommendations to the United Board of Directors regarding 
proposed revisions to the United governing documents 
including policies, resolution and operating rules; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Governing Documents Review 
Committee shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the 
Board; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that resolution 01-15-107 approved December 
10, 2019 is hereby superseded and cancelled.   

Agenda Item # 13f
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: November 12, 2019 
FOR:  Board of Directors
 SUBJE CT: 

 
Investment Policy Changes 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Investment Task Force recommends revising the United Laguna Woods Investment Policy 
(Attachment 1) to allow bond holdings at investment grade ratings and directing SageView to 
proceed with conversion from individual holdings to an index fund portfolio.  

BACKGROUND 
On November 6, 2018 an Investment Task Force was formed and chartered to conduct an in-
depth analysis of investments on behalf of the Golden Rain Foundation, United Laguna Woods 
Mutual, and Third Laguna Hills Mutual (Corporations) to ensure exceptional service from a 
professional investment manager, maximize yields within the Board-approved investment 
policies, and minimize fees.  Based on recommendations from the task force, the board 
awarded a contract for investment management services to SageView Advisory Group which 
was executed on October 1, 2019.   

On October 3, 2019, the task force held a special meeting with a special invitation to all board 
members.  SageView presented an overview of their firm, went over the transition timeline, and 
recommended investment policy modifications (Attachment 2).  As of mid-October, 100% of 
the accounts for all Corporations successfully transferred over as in-kind investments from 
Merrill Lynch to Fidelity via the standard industry process known as ACATS (Automated 
Customer Account Transfer Service) and are ready for new investment directives.  

DISCUSSION 
The current investment policy allows up to 20% of the portfolio to be invested in corporate 
bonds rated A through AAA, specifically A3/A-/A- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch.  SageView 
has put together a sample portfolio of index funds that include investment grade bonds, which 
would require a change in the investment policy language to allow ratings of BBB through 
AAA, specifically Baa3/BBB-/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Transitioning from an actively managed account to a portfolio of index funds will lower the 
investment management fees from 20 basis points to 7 basis points, a potential savings of 
approximately $20,000 annually assuming an average of $15M invested. 

Prepared By: Betty Parker, CFO 
Steve Hormuth, Controller 

Attachments: 
ATT1 – Investment Policy Resolution 
ATT2 – SageView Presentation dated 10/3/2019 Agenda Item # 13g 

Page 1 of 16



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 2 of 16



RESOLUTION 01-19-XX 

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL INVESTMENT POLICY 

RESOLVED, November 12, 2019 that the Managing Agent of this corporation, and 
an outside Investment Manager are hereby authorized to invest the funds of the 
corporation which, in the opinion of said managing agent are not required within a 
reasonable time to pay obligations of the corporation; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board of Directors of this Corporation hereby 
authorizes the Managing Agent of this corporation, to retain an Investment 
Manager and to give that Manager discretion to transact purchases and sales of 
investments for the United Laguna Woods Mutual account.  Such discretion is 
subject to the underlying conditions as stated below.  The Board will determine the 
amount to be managed in this discretionary account; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that all investments on behalf of this corporation must be 
made with the underlying principles in the following order of priority: (1) safety, (2) 
liquidity, where applicable, and (3) yield, and are subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. Notification of confirmation shall be given to the managing agent and treasurer
of this corporation upon completion of each investment transaction;

2. For funds administered by the Managing Agent in a non-discretionary account,
no investment may be sold, withdrawn, redeemed or otherwise converted to
cash prior to maturity without a demonstrated immediate need for the funds and
the consent of any two of the following: the Treasurer, the President or the 1st
or 2nd Vice President of this corporation.  Furthermore, if there is a request that
an investment be sold, withdrawn or otherwise converted to cash prior to
maturity where there has been no demonstrated immediate need, approval
must be received from the Board of Directors of this corporation;

3. Funds shall be invested only in authorized investments as provided herein.
Authorized investments are limited to:

a. obligations of, or fully guaranteed as to principal by, the United States
of America;

b. Up to 2030 percent of the portfolio may be invested in Corporate Bonds
rated A  BBB through AAA; specifically A3/A-/A- Baa3/BBB-/BBB- or
better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch.  A bond is only required to meet the criteria
of one rating service.  If a bond does not meet these minimum credit
quality criteria in at least one of the above-mentioned rating services,
the bond may not be purchased or if owned, must be removed from the

ATTACHMENT 1

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 3 of 16



portfolio within 30 days.  This removal criteria will not apply to bond 
mutual funds that have a stated objective of investing in investment 
grade rated bonds. Removal of downgraded bonds that fall below the 
investment grade rating will be determined by the fund manager. 

c. No more than 3% of portfolio is to be invested in any one corporate bond
issuer; and

d. Up to 25% of the portfolio may be invested in Government Sponsored
Federal Agencies, namely FNMA (Federal National Mortgage 
Association – Fannie Mae), FHLMC (Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation – Freddie Mac, and FHLB (Federal Home Loan Bank). 

4. Investments on behalf of this corporation may be made concurrently with
investments made on behalf of other corporations at Laguna Woods Village.
However, separate investment receipts will be held in the name of this
corporation.  Any such investments may be held for the account of the
corporation in book-entry form;

5. Any authorized investments, as defined in Item 3 above, previously made by
said Managing Agent or Investment Manager, are hereby ratified; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-17-38 adopted on March 14, 2017, is 
hereby superseded and cancelled.  

ATTACHMENT 1

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 4 of 16



DAN QUIRK, CFA, CFP 
Senior Investment Advisor

MALLORY ARMIJO, CFA
Investment Analyst

SageView Advisory Group 
Laguna Woods Village – Investment Task Force

October 3, 2019

MEETING 
AGENDA

1

2

3

SageView Overview

Timeline

Investment Analytics Review

3 Investment Policy Statement Review

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 5 of 16



3

SAGEVIEW 
OVERVIEW

1

4

Atlanta, GA

Austin, TX

Boston, MA

Chicago, IL

Dallas, TX

Denver, CO

Portland, OR 

Richmond, VA

San Francisco, CA

Washington, DC

West Hartford, CT

West Palm Beach, FL

Milwaukee, WI

Minneapolis, MN

Nashville, TN

Omaha, NE

Orinda, CA

Pasadena, CA

Honolulu, HI

Houston, TX

Irvine, CA

Kansas City, MO

Knoxville, TN

Los Angeles, CA

ASSETS UNDER 
ADVISEMENT

$100+ B 24 1,200+ 130+

OFFICE 
LOCATIONS

Clients NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES 

OUR LOCATIONS

Firm founded
HQ in California
100% employee owned
$500 million in assets

Opened LA Office
$1 billion in assets
100 clients

1989 2007 NOW

Opened Chicago and 
Milwaukee offices
275+ clients  

Added DB actuaries on staff
Investment committee has 12 
members
60+ staff
$7 billion in assets

Acquired Willis 
Insurance Employees
Opened D.C., 
Knoxville and Boston 
offices
$3 billion in assets

2003 2008

Nationwide presence,
17 member investment 
committee 

2004

OUR MILESTONES

SageView’s Milestones and Business Overview

Atlanta, GA

A stin TX

Portland, OR 

Richmond VA

Milwaukee, WI

Minneapolis MN

Honolulu, HI

Houston TX

OUR LOCATIONS

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 6 of 16



5

Timeline

2

6

Timeline

• September 17, 2019 – Accounts opened at Fidelity for Golden Rain Foundation of 
Laguna Woods, United Laguna Woods Mutual, and Third Laguna Hills Mutual

• October 1, 2019 – Paperwork submitted to Fidelity to initiate in-kind transfer for 
all three accounts from Merrill Lynch to Fidelity

• October 10, 2019 – Expected completion date of transfers to Fidelity

• October - November 2019 – Review and approval of modified Investment Policy 
Statements by the three respective boards

• 2019 - 2020 – Potential transition to mutual/index fund investment structure for 
all three portfolios. (SageView’s recommendation)

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 7 of 16



7

INVESTMENT 
ANALYTICS

3

8

SageView Investment Team Structure

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Board Members:

Marek Pfeil, CFA Co-Chair
Todd Stewart, CFA, Co-Chair

Matt Hammonds

Members at Large:

Asset
Liability
Team

Asset 
Allocation 

Team

3(38)
Fiduciary

Team

Manager 
Research 

Team

Chairperson: Rich Ginel, CIMA
Investment Advisory:
1. David Lum, CIMA
2. Rich Ginel, CIMA
3. Ken Barnes, CIMA
4. Todd Stewart, CFA
5. Patrick Raynor, CFA
Actuarial Expertise:
4. Larry McNamara, EA, FSPA, CFA
5. Dan Homan, EA, MAAA

Chairperson: Marek Pfeil, CFA

Tactical Team:
1. Mallory Armijo, CFA
2. David Lum, CIMA
3. Marek Pfeil, CFA
4. Todd Stewart,  CFA
5. Jack Evans
6. Brock Becker, CFP
7. Chris Martin, CFP
8. John Majors, FSA, CFA

Chairperson: Todd Stewart, CFA
US Value: Bijan Khairollahi
1. Bijan Khairollahi
2. Ann Cheu
3. Matt Hammonds
4. Ken Barnes, CIMA
US Growth: Valerie McKellar
5. Jack Evans
6. Valerie McKellar
7. Patrick Raynor, CFA
8. Kevin Kaiser, CIMA
Foreign Equity: Mallory Armijo, CFA
9. Mallory Armijo, CFA
10. Marty Cosgrove, CFA
Fixed Income: Bob Noll, CFA
11. Marek Pfeil, CFA
12. Stuart Payment
13. Bob Noll, CFA
14. Kerrie Casey
Asset Allocation & Alts: Justin Bogart
15. Todd Stewart, CFA
16. Dan Quirk, CFA, CFP
17. Justin Bogart, CIMA

Chairperson: Matt Hammonds
Legal & Risk Expertise:
1. Mark Kordonsky
2. Jonathan St. Clair, J.D.
Investment Consulting Expertise:
3. Marek Pfeil, CFA
4. Matt Hammonds
5. Kevin Kaiser, CIMA
6. Mallory Armijo, CFA
7. Patrick Raynor, CFA
8. Todd Stewart, CFA

Executive Committee
Randy Long, CEO
Jon Upham, President

Mark Kordonsky, CRO
Mark Hendrickson, CFA, CFO

Kevin Kaiser, CIMA (‘19)
Mallory Armijo, CFA (‘19)

Mark Forkey (‘20)
Jonathan St. Clair, JD (‘20)

Justin Bogart, CIMA
David Lum, CIMA
Rich Ginel, CIMA

Tim Burns, CFA
Doug Webster

Dan Quirk, CFA, CFP
Ken Barnes, CIMA
Jon Chambers
Bob Noll, CFA
Jack Evans

Registered Representative with and securities offered through Cetera 
Advisor Networks, LLC , Member FINRA/SIPC. Advisory Services offered 
through SageView Advisory Group, LLC. Cetera is under separate 
ownership from any other named entity.

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 8 of 16



9

Quantitative and Qualitative Assessment

Performance Ranking
•Trailing 1, 3, 5 and 10 year returns
•Rolling 12-month returns (10 years)
•Rolling 36-month returns (10 years)

Ratio statistics
•Alpha
•Sharpe Ratio (36 months)
•Up Capture Ratio
•Down Capture Ratio

Style consistency
Expense ratio

QUANTITATIVE MEASURES

• Firm structure/ownership

•Asset size and growth/negative cash 
flow

•Manager tenure

•Investment team structure

•Investment philosophy and strategy

•Portfolio construction

•Operations, compliance, trading 
strategies

•Risk controls

QUALITATIVE CRITERIA

SageView’s quantitative due diligence process is disciplined, metrics-driven,
performance-focused, and yet simple to follow and act upon. Informed by behavioral finance, 
it is uniquely client-focused.

We continually evaluate both our quantitative and qualitative process to ensure that both are 
dynamic and improving.

10

Sample Portfolio

Key Attributes:
• Streamlined portfolio construction
• Highly diversified, with thousands of underlying issuers
• Attractive yield of just over 3.04%, 2.97% net of all fees
• Duration of 3.8 years, which can be easily adjusted
• Ultra low expense ratios
• Strong credit quality - 70% Treasury/Agency, 30% IG corporate
• Improved portfolio dynamics, that lowers interest rate risk
• Compares to current portfolios with yields near 2.6% before fees

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 9 of 16



11

Rigorous Fund Benchmarking

12

Detailed Fund Level Analytics

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 10 of 16



13

Rigorous Portfolio Benchmarking

14

Detailed Portfolio Level Analytics

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 11 of 16



15

Investment Policy 
Statement Review

4

16

Investment Policy Statement – Golden Rain Foundation

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 12 of 16



17

Investment Policy Statement Modification– Golden Rain Foundation

b. Up to 30% of the portfolio may be invested in investment grade 
Corporate Bonds rated BBB through AAA; specifically Baa3/BBB-
/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. A bond is only required to 
meet the criteria of one rating service. If an individually held bond 
does not meet these minimum credit quality criteria in at least one of 
the above-mentioned rating services, the bond may not be 
purchased or if owned, must be removed from the portfolio within 30 
days. This removal criteria will not apply to bond mutual funds that 
have a stated objective of investing in investment grade rated bonds. 
Removal of bonds downgraded below the investment grade rating 
will be determined by the fund manager.

18

Investment Policy Statement – Third Laguna Hills

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 13 of 16



19

Investment Policy Statement Modification– Third Laguna Hills

b. Up to 30% of the portfolio may be invested in investment grade 
Corporate Bonds rated BBB through AAA; specifically Baa3/BBB-
/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. A bond is only required to 
meet the criteria of one rating service. If an individually held bond 
does not meet these minimum credit quality criteria in at least one of 
the above-mentioned rating services, the bond may not be 
purchased or if owned, must be removed from the portfolio within 30 
days. This removal criteria will not apply to bond mutual funds that 
have a stated objective of investing in investment grade rated bonds. 
Removal of bonds downgraded below the investment grade rating 
will be determined by the fund manager.

20

Investment Policy Statement – United Laguna Woods

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 14 of 16



21

Investment Policy Statement Modification– United Laguna Woods

b. Up to 30% of the portfolio may be invested in investment grade 
Corporate Bonds rated BBB through AAA; specifically Baa3/BBB-
/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. A bond is only required to 
meet the criteria of one rating service. If an individually held bond 
does not meet these minimum credit quality criteria in at least one of 
the above-mentioned rating services, the bond may not be 
purchased or if owned, must be removed from the portfolio within 30 
days. This removal criteria will not apply to bond mutual funds that 
have a stated objective of investing in investment grade rated bonds. 
Removal of bonds downgraded below the investment grade rating 
will be determined by the fund manager.

Note: Recommendation also includes moving from a maximum 
corporate bond allocation of 20% to 30%, matching Golden Rain 
and Third Laguna.

22

THANK YOU

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 15 of 16



www.sageviewadvisory.com
SageView Advisory Group, LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser. This report is for informational purposes only and is not a solicitation to invest. Advisory 
services are only offered to clients or prospective clients where SageView Advisory Group, LLC and its representatives are properly licensed or exempt from 
licensure. Past performance is no guarantee of future returns. Investing involves risk and possible loss of principal capital. No advice may be rendered by 
SageView Advisory Group, LLC unless a client service agreement is in place.

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 13g 
Page 16 of 16



11/6/2019

1

1

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

OPERATING INCOME 

STATEMENT
(in Thousands)

ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $30,311

Non-assessment Revenue $1,663

Total Revenue $31,974

Total Expense $32,997

Net Revenue/(Expense) ($1,023)

2

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

INCOME STATEMENT

(in Thousands)
ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $21,035

Non-assessment Revenue1 $1,048

Total Revenue $22,083

Total Expense2 $21,852

Operating Surplus $231

1) excludes unrealized gain
2) excludes depreciation

Agenda Item # 14a
Treasurer's Report

Page 1 of 8



11/6/2019

2

3

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

INCOME STATEMENT

(in Thousands)
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

Assessment Revenue $30,311 $29,337 $974

Non-assessment Revenue $1,663 $1,286 $377

Total Revenue $31,974 $30,623 $1,351

Total Expense $32,997 $32,415 ($581)

Net Revenue/(Expense) ($1,023) ($1,793) $770

4

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

($172K)

($123K)

$626K

$377K

Employee Compensation & Related

Non Assessment Revenue

Materials and Supplies

Outside Services

Unfavorable Favorable

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 2 of 8



11/6/2019

3

5

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

Total Non Assessment Revenues $1,662,897

Fees and Charges
26%

Interest Income
20%

Unrealized Gain (Loss) 
on Investments
17% Laundry

12%

Miscellaneous Revenue
11%

Lease Processing Fee ‐
United
6%

Resale Processing Fee
5%

Collection 
Administrative Fee
3%

6

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

Total Expenses $32,996,542

Employee 
Compensation
32%

Property and Sales Tax
25%

Outside Services
18%

Utilities
10%

Material and Supplies
7%

Insurance
3%

Net Allocation to 
Mutuals
3%

Other
2%

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 3 of 8



11/6/2019

4

7

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

NON OPERATING FUND BALANCES
(in Thousands)

CONTINGENCY REPLACEMENT

Beginning Balances: 1/1/19 $2,661 $19,052

Contributions & Interest 895 8,722

Expenditures (1,226) (9,762)

Current Balances: 9/30/19 $2,330 $18,012

8

FUND BALANCES – United Mutual

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contingency Fund
Replacement Fund

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 4 of 8



11/6/2019

5

9

RESALE HISTORY – United Mutual

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70
# UNITS

Financial Report
As of September 30, 2019

Agenda Item # 14a
Treasurer's Report

Page 5 of 8



CURRENT MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
PRIOR YEAR

ACTUAL
ANNUAL
BUDGET

Revenues:
Assessments:

1 Operating $2,337 $2,229 $108 $21,035 $20,061 $974 $20,421 $26,750
2 Additions to restricted funds 1,031 1,031 9,276 9,276 8,934 12,368

3 Total assessments 3,368 3,260 108 30,311 29,337 974 29,355 39,118

Non-assessment revenues:
4 Merchandise sales 2 (2) 4 22 (18) 20 30
5 Fees and charges for services to residents 57 40 18 439 356 83 275 475
6 Laundry 19 23 (4) 192 210 (18) 206 280
7 Interest income 38 24 14 338 217 121 281 289
8 Unrealized gain/(loss) on AFS investments 35 35 274 274
9 Miscellaneous 44 53 (9) 415 480 (66) 461 641

10 Total non-assessment revenue 194 143 51 1,663 1,286 377 1,244 1,715

11 Total revenue 3,562 3,402 160 31,974 30,623 1,351 30,599 40,832

Expenses:
12 Employee compensation and related 1,082 1,222 140 10,528 11,153 626 10,157 14,884
13 Materials and supplies 211 256 45 2,473 2,301 (172) 2,228 3,068
14 Utilities and telephone 427 417 (10) 3,196 3,210 14 3,265 4,232
15 Legal fees 22 15 (7) 158 131 (26) 155 175
16 Professional fees 10 9 123 139 16 102 168
17 Equipment rental 1 3 2 17 28 11 14 37
18 Outside services 1,001 654 (347) 6,009 5,886 (123) 5,400 7,848
19 Repairs and maintenance 3 4 1 26 35 9 35 47
20 Other Operating Expense 6 16 9 122 140 19 106 186
21 Income taxes 3 (3) 25
22 Property and sales tax 890 818 (73) 8,273 7,358 (914) 7,619 9,811
23 Insurance 109 108 (1) 956 969 13 924 1,292
24 Investment expense 3 3 19 28 9 28 37
25 Uncollectible Accounts 2 (2) 31 (31) 29
26 (Gain)/loss on sale or trade 1 (1) (2) 2 (6) (8) (2) (8)
27 Depreciation and amortization 17 17 156 156 159 208
28 Net allocation to mutuals 100 101 1 906 886 (20) 832 1,185

29 Total expenses 3,882 3,640 (241) 32,997 32,415 (581) 31,076 43,171

30 Excess of revenues over expenses ($319) ($238) ($82) ($1,023) ($1,793) $770 ($477) ($2,339)

United Laguna Woods Mutual
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary

9/30/2019
($ IN THOUSANDS)

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 6 of 8



 
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 

Variance Explanations as of September 30, 2019 
 
SUMMARY 
For the year-to-date period ending September 30, 2019, United Laguna Woods Mutual was better 
than budget by $770K, of which $377K is found in non-assessment revenues, primarily due to the 
reporting of Unrealized Gains on Available for Sale Investments. The remaining $393K is due to 
lower expenses in employee compensation. Explanations for categories with significant variances 
are found below. 

REVENUE 
► Non Assessment Revenue – Line 10  

The favorable variance shown here is primarily reflective of an Unrealized Gain of $274K 
reflects favorable investment market conditions, which fluctuate.  We also had more revenue 
than expended from investment earnings, reimbursement of moisture intrusion events, and 
permit fees.  United began charging $35 for Mutual Consent for Demolition at the beginning of 
the year to offset administrative costs associated with processing requests. 
 

EXPENSE 
► Employee Compensation and Related – Line 12  

Favorable variance primarily resulted in Maintenance and Construction Services; water heater 
replacements budgeted to be performed by in-house staff are being completed by vendors. 
Expenses are found in Outside Services, below. In addition, upgraded methodology in dry rot 
remediation and better management practices have resulted in a significant reduction in 
general maintenance and dry rot service orders. 
 

► Materials and Supplies – Line 13  
Unfavorable variance in plumbing materials due to a higher rate of water heater replacements 
than budgeted, required to address a backlog of work on hold in prior years.  Variance was 
partially offset by fewer replacements of interior components such as kitchen faucets and 
bathroom countertops.   

  
► Outside Services –  Line 18 Unfavorable variance due to: 
 
 Water Heaters & Permits  

In 2015, City of Laguna Woods Building Department began enforcing the installation of new 
replacement water heater with (TP) relief valves. Water heater replacement program was 
on hold while staff researched alternatives, creating a significant backlog. Outside vendors 
were contracted to assist to complete the backlog of installations. On August 13, 2019, the 
board authorized a supplemental appropriation of $940K to supplement the annual budget. 
 

 Roof Replacements 
Roofs that have reached the end of their serviceable life were replaced with the new PVC 
cool roof system. 23 buildings were completed in October. The program was completed in 
October within budget.  However, heavy rains led to more emergency roof repairs than 
anticipated.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 7 of 8



 
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 

Variance Explanations as of September 30, 2019 
 

Favorable variance due to: 
 
 Waste Line Remediation 

Work is in progress. Waste Line Remediation Program involves the installation of a 
seamless epoxy-based liner within the existing pipes to mitigate future interior leaks and 
root intrusion. The scope of work for 2019 includes 145 buildings which are anticipated to 
be completed by the end of the year.  
 

 Paving  
Although budget is spread evenly throughout the year, paving programs such as Parkway 
concrete and Asphalt Paving began in mid-September and scheduled to be completed in 
November.  
 

 Landscape Renovation 
Design work began in October. Scope of the work includes six turf areas. Staff anticipates 
the program to be on budget by the end of the year. 
 

 Gutter Cleaning  
The annual gutter cleaning program performed by outside service started in mid-September 
and is scheduled to be completed by the end of the year.  
 

► Property and Sales Tax – Line 22  
Unfavorable variance due to higher supplemental property taxes than anticipated at the time of 
budget preparation. Assessment base from the County Tax Assessor has increased as 
average sales price trends upward. Offsetting revenue found on Line 1. 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 8 of 8



 
 OPEN MEETING 

 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 Tuesday, September 24, 2019 – 1:30 p.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Sycamore Room, 24351 El Toro Road 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Gary Morrison – Chair, Juanita Skillman, Carl Randazzo, Sue 

Margolis 
  
OTHERS PRESENT: Dick Rader – VMS, Elizabeth Roper – Select Audit Task Force 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT: Elsie Addington 
  
STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Steve Hormuth 
 

 
Call to Order 
Director Morrison chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:30 p.m.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented.    
 
Approval of the Regular Meeting Report of July 30, 2019 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the committee report as presented. 
 
Chair Remarks 
None. 
 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
Elizabeth Roper, Advisor on the Select Audit Task Force, commented on the accrual process 
and the timely recording of expenses by individual project. By consensus, the committee 
requested an inquiry be submitted to M&C Department asking for projects to be accrued at each 
quarter end; current practice is to accrue at year-end.  
 
Department Head Update 
Ms. Parker commented on the approval of the 2020 business plan, the next investment task 
force meeting on October 3, 2019 at 2:30 p.m. with an invitation to all boards, and the insurance 
program renewals for 2020.   
 
 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Finance Committee 

Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 14a 
Finance Committee 

Page 2 of 2



4959 $14,821,540 $308,782$314,268January $17,913,250

5047 $18,660,142 $373,203$319,132February $14,680,050

8766 $28,065,799 $359,818$355,238March $23,445,712

7961 $27,694,226 $364,398$328,550April $20,041,551

7478 $24,187,990 $350,551$307,379May $23,975,536

8372 $28,002,538 $378,413$295,810June $21,298,290

6383 $19,434,100 $329,392$327,356July $27,170,573

8978 $28,612,100 $340,620$333,731August $26,031,000

4460 $17,185,192 $409,171$332,868September $19,972,080

6682 $22,702,400 $366,168$318,638October $26,128,300

**59 $17,330,500 $320,935November *

**47 $17,262,399 $383,609December *

TOTAL 684.00 $229,366,027

MON AVG 68.00 $22,936,603 $358,051

686.00

68.00 $22,065,634

$220,656,342

$323,297

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

October, 2019All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 111/04/2019

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 1 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

12

24

36

48

60

72

84

96

108

120

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - All Mutuals Page 1 11/04/2019 08:40

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 2 of 8



2322 $6,014,390 $261,495$240,098January $5,282,150

2117 $6,059,250 $288,536$250,362February $4,256,150

4021 $11,156,600 $278,915$302,619March $6,355,000

3033 $8,824,600 $294,153$281,577April $9,292,051

3127 $8,735,000 $281,774$236,315May $6,380,503

3740 $11,021,400 $297,876$257,445June $10,297,790

3537 $9,541,300 $272,609$248,373July $9,189,800

4439 $11,285,100 $256,480$256,887August $10,018,600

1827 $4,632,500 $257,361$271,441September $7,328,900

2841 $8,556,100 $305,575$243,546October $9,985,400

**24 $6,194,000 $258,083November *

**14 $3,368,300 $240,593December *

TOTAL 307.00 $85,826,240

MON AVG 30.00 $8,582,624 $279,477

304.00

30.00 $7,838,634

$78,386,344

$258,866

% CHANGE -
YTD

-1.0% -8.7% -7.4%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

October, 2019UnitedCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 111/04/2019

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 3 of 8



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 4 of 8



10/23/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 12-B 1 Century 21 RainbowValencia$238,000

10/21/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.45-O 1 Douglas Elliman of California, IncCasa Blanca$165,000

10/24/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 45-E 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncMajorca$200,000

10/01/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.48-B 1 Vantage Real EstateCadiz$154,000

10/28/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow94-A 1 HomeSmart EvergreenSan 
Sebastian

$272,000

10/15/2019 Big Block Realty Granite Escrow104-Q 1 IPRO Real EstateCadiz$165,500

10/18/2019 Coldwell Banker Residential Granite Escrow110-G 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncMajorca$205,000

10/15/2019 Jack Wallace Corner Escrow Inc.162-N 1 Village Real Estate ServicesCasa Blanca$165,000

10/17/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Granite Escrow167-H 1 First Team Real EstateBarcelona$195,000

10/30/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group225-Q 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Blanca$215,000

10/29/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow270-N 1 Regency Real EstateCasa Blanca$295,000

10/07/2019 Evergreen Realty Generations Escrow285-B 1 Troy Shadian BrokerSan 
Sebastian

$360,000

10/16/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 370-C 1 First Team Real EstateGranada$224,000

10/30/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Corner Escrow Inc.521-P 1 Century 21 RainbowCasa Blanca$295,000

10/01/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 525-B 1 Century 21 RainbowMajorca$198,000

10/08/2019 HS Evergreen Granite Escrow572-A 1 Re/Max Premier RealtyCordoba$485,000

10/28/2019 First Team Real Estate Coast Cities Escrow581-N 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa Linda$272,000

10/16/2019 Regency Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.610-P 1 Coldwell Banker Best RealtyCasa Linda$380,000

10/30/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 622-P 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa Linda$325,000

10/25/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 622-A 1 Keller Williams Real EstateCasa Linda$212,000

10/21/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.691-A 1 Century 21 RainbowGranada$344,500

10/15/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Granite Escrow699-B 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncSan 
Sebastian

$369,900

10/15/2019 First Team Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.702-A 1 Realty QuestMadrid$315,000

United Laguna Woods Mutual

Resales Report

October, 2019

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 1Page 2of11/04/2019

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 5 of 8



10/04/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow729-D 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCordoba$310,000

10/01/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 743-B 1 HomeSmart EvergreenMajorca$180,000

10/09/2019 Century 21 Award Granite Escrow750-B 1 Coldwell BankerLa Corona$207,500

10/18/2019 OC Real Estate 411 Corner Escrow Inc.783-P 1 Hallmark West Real EstateCasa Linda$245,000

10/31/2019 Bullock Russell Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.783-O 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Linda$172,500

10/14/2019 Keller Williams Real Estate Granite Escrow840-B 1 Coldwell BankerCasa Linda$237,000

10/15/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.864-Q 1 United Real Estate ProfessionalsCasa 
Contenta

$170,000

10/25/2019 Re/Max Premier Realty Granite Escrow896-B 1 Village Real Estate ServicesCasa Linda$217,000

10/31/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.922-O 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCadiz$134,000

10/17/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow944-D 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCadiz$149,500

10/25/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Granite Escrow953-P 1 Village Real Estate ServicesCasa Linda$262,000

10/15/2019 Prea Realty Corner Escrow Inc.2016-P 1 Realty QuestCasa Linda$440,000

10/15/2019 Prea Realty Corner Escrow Inc.2104-Q 1 H & M Realty GroupCasa Linda$235,000

10/31/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Granite Escrow2123-G 1 Century 21 RainbowCoronado$140,000

10/22/2019 Village Real Estate Services Corner Escrow Inc.2144-B 1 Big Block RealtyCoronado$155,000

10/29/2019 Realty One Group Corner Escrow Inc.2185-N 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCastilla$316,000

10/04/2019 Keller Williams Realty Granite Escrow2188-A 1 H & M Realty GroupCasa Linda$185,000

10/02/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.2218-D 1 Century 21 RainbowMonterey$180,000

Total Resale Price:

Number of Resales:

Average Resale Price: $243,546

41

$9,985,400

Median Resale Price: $217,000

United Laguna Woods Mutual

Resales Report

October, 2019

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 2Page 2of11/04/2019

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 6 of 8



New Monthly Transactions

MONTH 3 Months 6 Months 12 Months Renewed Leases Renewals Extensions

January 35 44 312 163 554 29 30 25 0
February 29 43 296 191 559 19 30 31 0
March 16 34 270 224 544 54 25 29 1
April 13 30 254 255 552 45 43 36 0
May 22 27 229 282 560 33 58 36 1
June 25 27 208 308 568 24 42 31 2
July 26 28 195 329 578 24 41 33 3
August 20 32 183 344 579 24 29 34 2
September 23 32 181 345 581 41 31 22 3
October 10 28 181 339 558 22 43 40 0
November
December

Monthly 
Average 21.9 32.5 230.9 278.0 563.3 Oct 512.2 31.5 37.2 31.7 1.2

Percentage 
Leased 558 / 6323 = 9% New Leases = Units Sublet

Total 
Expirations

MONTHLY LEASING REPORT
Report Period: 
October-2019

LEASES IN EFFECT Total this 
year

Total last 
year

558

520
506
478
491
512
524
540
524
527
546

500

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 7 of 8



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale & Leasing Reports 

Page 8 of 8



Agenda Item # 14b 
September 2019 

Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
September 2019 

Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
September 2019 

Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
September 2019 

Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
October 2019 

Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item # 14b 
October 2019 

Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 14b 
October 2019 

Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 14e 
September 2019 

Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
September 2019 

Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
September 2019 

Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
September 2019 

Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
October 2019 

Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
October 2019 

Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
October 2019 

Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
October 2019 

Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 4 of 4



 
OPEN MEETING 

 
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS 
MUTUAL MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, August 28, 2019 - 9:00 a.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room   
24351 El Toro Road 

 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Carl Randazzo – Chair, Sue Margolis, Reza 
Bastani, Gary Morrison, Cash Achrekar 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT: Walter Ridley 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria, 

Chris Naylor 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Randazzo called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
Chair Randazzo noted no members of the media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved as written. 
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for June 26, 2019 
 
The Meeting Report for June 26, 2019 was approved as written.  
 
5. Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Chair Randazzo remarked on the agenda items that will be discussed at this 
meeting such as the project logs, operating budget and the assessment increase 
for 2020.  He also summarized the information that was missing from the Solar 
Power Plant Task Force report and noted that corrections will be documented and 
publicized.  The chair ended his remarks with a thought for the day by Mahatma 
Gandhi: “It's the action, not the fruit of the action, that's important.  You have to do 

Agenda Item # 14g 
August 2019 
Page 1 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual                                                                                      Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee                    
August 28, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 
 

the right thing.  It may not be in your power, may not be in your time, that there'll be 
any fruit. But that doesn't mean you stop doing the right thing.  You may never 
know what results come from your action.  But if you do nothing, there will be no 
result.” 
 
6. Member Comments - (Items Not on Agenda)  
 
There were no Member Comments. 
 
7. Department Head Update 

 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz provided an update on: 
 

 Dishwasher Purchase Cost: The cost of Mutual owned GE dishwashers are 
compatible to the cost of the same appliance from a home improvement 
store.  The Mutual’s cost will also include labor for installation and a service 
charge. 
 

 Shepherd’s Crook: The materials are currently being fabricated and will be 
installed prior to the end of the year. 
 

 Drainage Concerns: Pictures were displayed noting drainage repairs that 
are in progress. 
 

Discussion ensued regarding existing funding used to address drainage; 
inspection of crawl spaces; reporting of possible drainage concerns; structural 
engineering review of areas where drainage improvements are needed; and the 
criteria for areas that may have drainage issues. 
 
By consensus, staff was directed create a scope of work and issue an RFP for a 
structural engineer to review susceptible areas for potential structural repairs. 
 
Staff will bring back a report with costs to either increase the height of the existing 
shepherd’s crook fencing on the wall behind the ALDI grocery store, or to remove 
and replace it with new Shepherd’s Crook. 
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed 
from the Consent Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be 
the subject of further discussion and action by the Committee. 
 
Item 10 was pulled from Consent for discussion.  A motion was made and 
unanimously carried to move the remaining items on the Consent Calendar. 
 
8. Project Log  

Agenda Item # 14g 
August 2019 
Page 2 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual                                                                                      Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee                    
August 28, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 
 

9. Maintenance Programs Reports  
10. Expenditures Report & Variance Explanations  
 
Director Margolis commented on the appliance and fixture replacements budgets 
that have not yet been expended this year.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding reserving for appliance components that are the 
responsibility of the Mutual and ways to catalog the alteration appliances during 
the Preventive Maintenance Program.   
 
By consensus, staff was directed to add a checklist to the PM Program that will 
allow the Preventive Maintenance crew to record alteration kitchen appliances 
during their annual inspection program.  Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz will inform the 
Committee if this added work will adversely affect the program schedule. 
 
11. Copper Pipe Supply Line Leak Report 

 
Reports: 

 
12. Solar Production Report 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from 
the Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding possible shading around the panels at Location 91; 
lower production months; single line diagrams; inverter specifications; and climate 
related solar production. 
 
By consensus, staff was directed to have the Mutual’s legal counsel contact 
Johnson Controls, Inc. and request the material specifications on the inverters for 
the solar panels. 
 
13. Solar Power Plant Task Force Report From 6/26/19 

 
Director Margolis apologized for providing some incorrect information in the Solar 
Power Plant Task Force report.  Chair Randazzo indicated that the report is still a 
work in progress and will be revised as updated information is received and 
analyzed. 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 

 Shepherd's Crook Replacement behind the ALDI Grocery Store 
 Revisions to the United M&C Committee Charter 01-14-133 
 2020 Building & CDS Address Sign Installation Program 
 Electrical Infrastructure Improvements Analysis by TEC 
 Copper Pipe Supply Line Leak Report (December 2019, April & August 2020) 
 Drainage Improvements to Prevent Foundation Issues 

Agenda Item # 14g 
August 2019 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14g 
August 2019 
Page 4 of 4



 
OPEN MEETING 

 
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS 
MUTUAL MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 - 9:00 a.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room   
24351 El Toro Road 

 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Carl Randazzo – Chair, Juanita Skillman (in for 
Cash Achrekar) Andre Torng (in for Brian 
Gilmore), Elsie Addington, Reza Bastani 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Cash Achrekar, Brian Gilmore 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT: Walter Ridley, Ken Deppe, Janey Dorrell 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Guy West – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria, Chris 

Naylor 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Randazzo called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 
 
2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
Chair Randazzo noted no members of the media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved as written. 
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for August 28, 2019 
 
The Meeting Report for August 28, 2019 was approved as written.  
 
5. Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Chair Randazzo remarked on items to be discussed in today’s meeting.  The Chair 
ended his remarks with a thought for the day by Woodrow Wilson “I not only use all 
the brains that I have, but all I can borrow.” 

Agenda Item # 14g 
October 2019 

Page 1 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual                                                                                      Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee                    
October 23, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
6. Member Comments - (Items Not on Agenda)  
 

 Xun Su (333-C) commented on his alteration electrical panel replacement. 
 
Various Directors and Staff Officer Guy West responded to the member comment. 
 
7. Department Head Update 

 
Staff Officer Guy West had no update.   
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed 
from the Consent Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be 
the subject of further discussion and action by the Committee. 
 
A motion was made and unanimously carried to move the remaining items on the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
8. Project Log  
9. Maintenance Programs Reports  
10. Expenditures Report & Variance Explanations  
11. Solar Production Report 

 
Reports: 
 
12. Parking Space Striping inside Cul-de-sac 45 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the seal coat program; budgets for striping; ticketing 
for improper parking; and a previous parking study.  
 
By consensus staff was directed to table this request and address cul-de-sac 
striping at the upcoming 2021 Business Planning Meeting.  In addition, if a 
previous study that may have been conducted on red curbs in United Mutual is 
available, staff should present this as well for review at the 2021 Business 
Planning Meeting. 
 
13. Countertop Replacement Efficiencies Due to New Equipment 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   
 

Agenda Item # 14g 
October 2019 

Page 2 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual                                                                                      Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee                    
October 23, 2019 
Page 3 of 5 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the cost of the equipment and the number of 
countertop replacements completed each year. 
 
14. 2020 Building & CDS Address Sign Installation Program  

 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the color of the building address signs. 
 
15. Revisions to the United M&C Committee Charter 01-14-133 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding architectural review; and the relationship between 
the Committee and the M&C Department.  A Scribner’s correction will be made to 
change the word “liaison” to relationship in the fourth paragraph of the resolution. 
 
On May 9, 2017, the Board established the Architectural Control and Standards 
Committee as a standing committee separate from the M&C Committee. The 
Maintenance and Construction Committee’s charter has now been revised to 
reflect the current focus of this standing committee. The Committee shall maintain 
a working relationship with the Maintenance & Construction Department of the 
Managing Agent’s organization to ensure that the real property and fixtures owned 
and managed by United Laguna Woods Mutual are maintained, reconditioned, 
improved or augmented as necessary or desired to meet the policies established 
by the Board of Directors, or as required by government agencies that have 
standing in establishing public policy. 
 
A motion was made and unanimously approved to recommend the Board approve 
revisions to the United Maintenance and Construction Committee Charter which 
reflect the current need of the standing committee. 
 
16. Supplemental Funding for Solar PV Materials 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the funding source for the materials.   
 
By consensus, staff was directed to purchase the solar PV materials using the 
current Energy Program allocation from the Operating Fund. 
 
17. Shepherd’s Crook Behind ALDI Grocery Store 

 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee.   

Agenda Item # 14g 
October 2019 

Page 3 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual                                                                                      Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee                    
October 23, 2019 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the various wall heights; the height of the Shepherd’s 
Crook fencing; the use of this security measure as a deterrent only; the current 
area for Shepherd’s Crook installation in 2019; and the CUP requirements for the 
amount of linear footage replacement each year.  
 
By consensus, staff was asked to determine if the 660 linear feet of Shepherd’s 
Crook fencing that has already been fabricated for El Toro Road fencing can be 
used in another area of United Mutual.  
 
18. Consultant to Manage Solar PV Analysis (oral discussion) 
 
The Senior Management Analyst provided an update on the analysis of the JCI 
report and solar generation and answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the angle for the solar panels; the frequency of 
cleaning for the solar panels; the solar production guarantee by JCI; the 14% 
increase of solar production in 2019; and the solar panel drawings that are now 
available on the website.  
 
Chair Randazzo requested that a meeting be set up with JCI to discuss the terms 
of the contract and the lack of solar production in the first two years.   
 
19. Walkway Lighting Request Process (oral discussion) 

 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the walkway lighting request process and 
answered questions from the Committee.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding walkway lighting upgrades; street lights owned by 
the city; and lighting to designate changes in direction or elevation only. 
 
Director Addington stated that she will place an article in the breeze regarding the 
walkway lighting request process. 

 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 
 Electrical Infrastructure Improvements by TEC 
 Copper Pipe Supply Line Leak Report (February, April, August & December) 
 Drainage Improvements to Prevent Foundation Issues (Ken Deppe & a future 

consultant) 
 
Concluding Business: 
 
Committee Member Comments 
 Advisor Dorrell commented on the protocol for answering resident questions. 
 Advisor Deppe asked to see the Topographical maps related to drainage. 
 Advisor Ridley commented on the frequency of carport cleaning. 

Agenda Item # 14g 
October 2019 

Page 4 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual         Open Meeting 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
October 23, 2019 
Page 5 of 5 

 Director Bastani asked about SCE’s infrastructure upgrades.
 Director Torng commented on Pushmatic panel replacement for alterations.
 Director Addington thanked staff for their patience.

Date of Next Meeting – Tentatively Set for Thursday, December 19, 2019 at 
1:30pm 

Adjournment 

The meeting was recessed at 11:42 a.m. 

_____________________________ 
Carl Randazzo, Chair 

Agenda Item # 14g
October 2019

Page 5 of 5

DRAFT



this page intentionally left blank



 
                 OPEN MEETING 

  
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
 

 Wednesday, October 9, 2019 – 9:30 A.M. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center, Board Room 

24351 El Toro Road 
 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jim Matson - Chair, Don Tibbetts, Richard Palmer, John Frankel, 

Bunny Carpenter, Sue Margolis, Carl Randazzo 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT: None 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Ryna Rothberg and Advisor John Luebbe 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Cush Bhada, Joan Milliman, Bert Moldow, Beth Perak 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria, Chief Tim Moy 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Matson called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m. 
 
2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
Chair Matson noted no members of the media were present.  
 
3. Approval of the Agenda  
 
The agenda was approved as written. 
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for August 14, 2019 
 
The meeting report for August 14, 2019, was approved as written. 
 
5. Chair’s Remarks 
 
Chair Matson had no comments. 
 
6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 

Agenda Item # 15d 
Page 1 of 4



Report of GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee Regular Meeting                  
October 9, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
There were no member comments. 
 
7. Department Head Update 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz spoke briefly about the special Village Energy Task Force meeting 
that will be held on October 18, 2019. 
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by the 
Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by 
members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by 
the Committee. 
 
The Project Log was pulled for discussion. 
 
8. Project Log 
 
Item #3 PAC Renovation Maintenance Upgrades: Directors Randazzo and Frankel asked about 
the status of the PAC renovation bid process and coordination with the City of Laguna Woods. 
 
Item #4 Community Center HVAC & Controls Upgrade – Director Randazzo commented on the 
commissioning of the equipment. 
 
Item #16 GRF Paving & Sealcoat Program with Concrete Repairs – Director Matson 
commented on the work near Avenida Sosiega. 
 
Item #18 Tennis Center Building Improvements – Director Palmer commented on the 
alternative bid item for indirect evaporative cooling. 
 
Completed Community Center EV Charging Station Project – Director Margolis asked about the 
rebate. 
 
Completed Pickleball & Tennis Center Courts – Director Matson asked if there was any 
negative feedback since the project has been completed. 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz responded to all questions and comments. 
 
Reports: 
 
9. Gate 11 Security Improvement Project 
 
Security Chief Tim Moy summarized the report and answered questions from the Committee. 
 

Agenda Item # 15d 
Page 2 of 4



Report of GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee Regular Meeting                  
October 9, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued regarding combining the gate security project for both Gate 10 11; conflicts 
with acquiring the Santa Maria roadway; and benefits of the security improvements. 
 
A motion was made an unanimously approved to recommend the Board authorize Gate 11 to 
be added to the current scope of work for the Gatehouse Renovation Project and that a 
supplemental appropriation be approved in the amount of $110,000 from the Facilities Fund for 
Gate 11 Renovations and $80,000 from the Equipment Fund for Gate Access System 
Technology for a total of $190,000. 
 
10. Set Pricing for Level 3 EV Charging Stations at the Community Center 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding adaptors for Tesla charges; usage of the new chargers; charging 
stations will be seen as amenity for future home buyers and existing residents with electric 
vehicles; how to monitor electricity rates and address any changes to the current rate. 
 
By consensus, staff was directed to bring information to a future meeting regarding the costs 
and feasibility of purchasing an adaptor that will allow Tesla vehicles to use the Level-III 
charging stations. 
 
A motion was made to recommend the Board accept the pricing of the new Chargepoint Level-
III electric vehicle chargers at $0.25 per kWh for residents and $0.40 kWh for the public, while 
keeping the pricing at no charge for GRF’s fleet vehicles.  Additionally parking at Level-III 
stations will be set at two dollars per hour after the first sixty minutes, for both residents and the 
general public.   
 
11. Service Agreement for Commissioning of Community Center by MelRok Energy 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the monthly cost for the monitoring service; the purchasing policy 
regarding competitive bids; cost effectiveness; and how Pomona College uses this AI 
technology from MelRok Energy 
 
A motion was made to recommend the Board enter into a month to month service agreement 
not to exceed $6,300 which includes one year of monitoring service and a onetime fee for the 
setup and configuration of this system.  The service agreement will begin after the 
commissioning of the new EMS and HVAC equipment has been completed and due to the 
proprietary equipment provided by the vendor, staff is authorized to sole source this contract to 
MelRok Energy. By a vote of 5/1/0 (Director Tibbetts Opposed) the motion carried. 
 
Funding for this work would be provided from the existing appropriation for Miscellaneous 
Projects in the 2019 Capital Plan, to be paid from the Facilities Fund. 

Agenda Item # 15d 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 15d 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 15g 
Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item # 15g 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 15g 
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 15i 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 15i 
Page 2 of 2


	11a1 Resolution 01-19-xx Variance Request Resolution for 11-12-19 Board Meeting_769-B_ar_BC.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c1 Resolution 01-19-xx UNITED Landscape Resolution for 75-T_Deny removal of Southern Magnolia.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c2 Resolution 01-19-xx UNITED Landscape Resolution for 313-A_Deny removal of Canary Island Pine.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c3 Resolution 01-19-xx UNITED Landscape Resolution for 873-D Deny removal of one Star Pine.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c4 Resolution 01-19-xx UNITED Landscape Resolution for 2188-Q Deny removal of one Silk Oak.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c5 Resolution 01-19-xx UNITED Landscape Resolution for 471-F_Approval to Remove One Carrotwood Tree.pdf
	Blank Page

	12a Recognition Agreement Staff Report and Resolution.pdf
	13a staff report recognition agreement 090419_ER R1 (2)
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	United is a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation, existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, organized for the purpose of providing its members with housing on a cooperative nonprofit basis pursuant to the provisions set fort...
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	13a United- Recognition Agreement Redlined 8July_2019 - JB comments (2) R1_ER redline attachments

	13a Staff Report, Resolultion & Standard 27 Soft Water Unit.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	Standard 27: Soft Water Units
	SECTION Standard 27: Soft Water Units
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13b Staff Report, Resolution & Standard 30 Waterheater.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	STANDARD 30: Water Heater RElocation
	STANDARD 30: Water Heater RElocation
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13c Staff Report, Resolution & Standard 36 Ramps.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13d Staff Report, Endorsement & VMS Liaison Charter.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13f Endorsement & Resolution Governing Documents Charter.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13g Staff Report United Investment Policy Revisions - November 12 2019.pdf
	Endorsement_GRF Investment Policy
	Staff Report_Investment Policy Change
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Resolution 90-19-XX GRF Investment Policy (redline)
	RESOLUTION 90-19-XX

	Laguna Woods VMS - SageView Presentation 10-3-2019
	ADPC271.tmp
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	ADPC782.tmp
	RESOLUTION 90-19-XX

	Staff Report_Investment Policy Change.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	ADPFA91.tmp
	RESOLUTION 90-19-XX

	Staff Report_Investment Policy Change.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Blank Page

	14a2 United Finance Report 2019-09-24 OPEN (Signed).pdf
	Gary Morrison, Chair
	United Finance Report 2019-09-24 OPEN page 1 of 2 only.pdf
	Gary Morrison, Chair


	14a3 Resale & Leasing Reports for October.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	14g ULWM MC Meeting Report  8-28-19 FINAL.pdf
	ULWM M&C Meeting Report  8-28-19 FINAL.pdf
	20190916140738766

	15d GRF MC Report 10-9-19 (Open) Final.pdf
	GRF MC Report 10-9-19 (Open) Final.pdf
	Laguna Woods Village Community Center, Board Room
	24351 El Toro Road

	20191030112037729.pdf

	15g GRF Mobility  Vehicles Report 2019-10-02.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	14a1 United Treasurer's Report - November 12 2019 Combined (Draft).pdf
	United Variance Report 2019-09 for Agenda
	United Treasurer's Report 2019-09 Slides
	Statement of Revenue & Expenses

	14g1 ULWM MC Meeting Report  8-28-19 FINAL.pdf
	ULWM M&C Meeting Report  8-28-19 FINAL.pdf
	20190916140738766

	14g2 ULWM MC Meeting Report (open) 10-23-19 final.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	11b1 Staff Report - Deny Appeal from 2096-N for Reasonable Compensation 10-23-19.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13f Endorsement & Resolution Governing Documents Charter.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	13f Staff Report - Governing Documents Review Committee Charter packet.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

	ADPF437.tmp
	GOVERNING DOCUMENTS REVIEW COMMITTEE CHARTER


	Blank Page

	13c Completed Standard 36 Ramps.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	11d1 United Financial Review Checklist - September 30 2019 (Signed).pdf
	Blank Page

	11d1 United Financial Review Checklist - September 30 2019 (Signed).pdf
	Blank Page

	9a VMS_PPT_Dorothy Pacella_DRAFT.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Blank Page




